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CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
YEAR:ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BUSINESS REVIEW AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The principal activity of the Company during the. period was that of an invesiment company.

The Company had.no IJJmover during the peried to 31 December 2017 and.generated a profit on ordinary
activiies before taxation of $63,257,242 {2016: loss of $87,407 ,804). The net assets position as at 31 December
2017 is $268,054,588 (2016: $206,921,108).

The profit arises as a result of a part reversal of an investment impairment amounting to $52,180,861. The
valuation of the investment is based on the performance of its subsidiary’s investment-and assessed in line with

the Compsiny’s-accounting palicies. The value is based on management forecasts and thmd party valuations of
the underlying hotel asset. .

As a result, the key financial performarice indicator is:

Carrying value of investment: $103,412,560 {2016: $86,512,679)

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The directors intend to wing up the Company. by transfering its investment to other companies within the group.
PRINCIPAL.RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As the Company is-a holding oompany: the principal risks facing the businiess is that they do not receive a

satisfactory rétum on their investmént. Therefore it is dependent o the performance of the underlying hotel
asset. .

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Whilst its exposure to risk is largety controfled by its parent company, the Company is exposed to financial risk
as follows: .

a) Foreign curtancy risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk through its activities in the. Unitéd Kingdom where certain costs arise
in Pounds Sterling, whillst:the Company's functional currency is US Dollar. The Company has no formal polrcy in
‘tespect of foreign exchange risk; however it reviews its currency exposure on a regular basis. The foreign
turrency: transachons that take' place in the period are insignificant.

by Liquidity risk

Liquidity: risk is the fisk. mat an entity will encounter difficulty-in meetmg obligations: dssociated Wwith financigi
liabilities. The company has no éverdrat or loai facilities, and therefore no materal issues: surrnundmg its

liquidity:

c) Interest rate rigk .

All of Company’s intercompany loans. receivable are at a fixed rate of interest. H
d) Credit risk '

Credit risk arises. from the Company's loans and receivables. The Company-holds. no collateral against these
receivables at the statement of financial pgsition date.

F J Bakhos '

Director

29.9. 1




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT .
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

‘The Directors submit their report and the financial statements of Constellation Barclay UK Limited for the period
énded 31 December 2017.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The resuits. for the period are set out on page 8. The directors have not recommended a dividend. -
DIRECTORS - - ' ' ‘
The directors who served the company during the.pericd were-as follows:

Jassim Bin Hamad Bin Jassim Bin JabrAl-Thani

Fady Jan Bakhos

GD’ING’ CONCERN

The directors intend to wind up-the. Company by trapsferring its investmet to ather com panies within the group.
As aresult, the Company is not a going concemn and these financial statements have been prepared on a break- . -

- up basis. We draWyour attention to note 2 of the financial statements which ouﬂm&e the.events-and conditions
ithat indicate that 1he going concerh basis is. mappropnate .

STRATEGIC: REPORT

- The campany has chiosen in accordance. thh Section 414CG(11) of the Compames Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and - Directors' Report) Regulations 2013 fo set out within the: Compani’s Strategic' Report the Company's
Strategic Report information Required by Schedufe 7 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts: and Reports) Regulation. 2008. This includes. information that' wouid have been included in the
business rewew and details of the: principal risks and. uncertafm:es ) ]

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

So far as the Directors are aware, there is- no- relevant audit information of which the Company’s audltor is
unaware, and they have taken all the steps that they ought to  have taker as dlrectors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Comipany's’ audifor is aware of that

information.
AUDITOR

' Menzies LLP have been deemed re-appomted as audltors for the: ensuing year in accordance with sectron 485 -
of the-Companies Act 2006. - . . .

F J Bakhos.

Director

29.9. 18




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the - Dlrectors Report and the financial
statements it accordance-with applicable law and regulations. .

Company law- requires, the directors to: prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors are elecled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Acceptéd Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporiing
" Standard 101 ‘Réduced Disclosure Framework’. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of ttie profit or loss of the Company for that period. In. preparing those financial statements, the directors are
required to:

» - sélect suitable accounting policies.and then apply them consistently;
« make judgemants and estimales that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whéther applicable UK Accounting Standards have: been followed; subject to any material
depaitures disciosed and:explained in the finaricial statements;

« prépare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless. it is mappn::pnate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show. and explain
the- Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are. also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irmegularities.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Opinion.

We have audited the financial statements: of Constellation Barclay UK Limited for the year ended 31 December
2017 which comprise the statement of profit ot loss and other comprehensive income,.the statement of financial
position, the statement of ‘changes in equity and notes to the financial stafemients; moludlng a summary of
significant accounting policies. The finaneial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework'. ,

>

In our opinion the ﬁna_ncial statements:

s give a true and fair visw of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2017, and-of its foss for the
year then ended;

o have been properiy prepared in accordance with Unm Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and - .

e  have been prepared in acoordande with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance wﬂh International Standards on Auditing (UK). (ISAs (UK)) and applicable.
law.-Out-résponsibiliies under these standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsmsl ities for.the: audit
of the financial statements section of our report: We are independent of the company-in accordance with the
sthical requifements that are relevant to our audit of the.financial statements in the. UK, inciuding the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled dur other ethical responsibilities in-accordance. with these requitements.
We believe that the audit evidénce we have-obtained is.sufficient and appropriate to provude a basis for our
oplmon

Conclusions relating to going concern
We draw atfention to noté 2.im thie: financial statements, which outlines the-management’s decision to wind up thie
Company as part of a group restructure process: As sfated in note 2, these events.or conditions, aiong with the

other matters as set forthi in riote 2, indicate that the going concern basis is mappropnate Our opinion is not
modified in reftpect of this.matter. .

Other information

The directors are.responsible for the: other information. The other I'nfonnaﬁon comptises the information included

in the annual repott, other than:the financial statements and.our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and; except to the extent ethenmse explicitty statad in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion-thereon:

- In connection with our- audit of the financiai statements, our responsibility is fo. réad the other mfcrmat:on and, in
" doing so, consider whether thie other infomiation is materially inconsistent with the.financial statements. or our
krowledge.obtained in the audit or. otherwise appears to be matérially misstated: If we identify such material
jnconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we: are-réquired to defermine whether there is.4 material
misstatement in the financial stafements or a material misstatement of the- other information. if, based on the
work we have performed, we:conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters préscribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work. u‘ndertaken in the course of the audit:

e the |nformation given in the strateglc report: and the directors' report for thé financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and )

o the strateglc report and the dnrectors report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

&



CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 .

Matters on whlch we are requnred to report by excephon

In the light of our knowledge and undérstanding of the company and its eavifonment obtamed in ‘the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements. in the: strategic report and the directors’ report.

We have nothing to reportin respect of the following matters in relahon to which the Companies Act 2006
tequires us to report to you if; in our opinion:

« adeguate accounting records tiave not been kapt, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
fram branches not visited by us; or

-

o the financial statements aré not in:agreement wnh the accaunting records.and retums ar
« certain disclosures. of directors’ remuneration speciﬁed by law are not made of
«  we.have not réceived alt the-information and explanations we require for our audit:

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more futly in the directors’ responsibilities statement,. the ditectors are. responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for suchi
intemal control'as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparauon of financiat statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the. financial statemenis the: directo‘rs are responsible for dssessing the company’s abi(ity to
continué as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concem basis of-accounting: unless the:directors either intend to liquidate the company. or té cease operabons or
have no realistic alfernative butto do so

* Auditor's responsibilities far the atdit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to-obtain reasonablé assurance about whether the financial statements. as a whole are free
from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or eqrof, and to issue an auditor's report that indludes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levél of assurahce, but is not a guarantee-that an audit conducted i in
accordance with:ISAs (UK) will always detect-a: material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or-error-and are considered matedal ff, individually of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken or the«bas:s of these financial statements.

A further description of bur responsibiliies for thie audit of the:financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website-at: hitps:/fwww.fic.org. uklaud:tarsresponsabulmes This descnpnon forms part of aur

audltofs report. -
Use of qur report

Thi$ report is made solélyto the Qompany's members; as a body in acoondance with Chapter 3 of Part’ 16.of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has ‘been undertaken sa that we might state to the company’s members
thase matters we are required to state fo them in an auditor's report and for no otherpurpose. To the fullest
extant permitted by law, we. do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ather than the tompany:and the
mmpany‘s members as a body, fbr our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we. have formed.

Carolme,:%\il?;?{: €A (Senior Statutory Auditor)
Fiof and on behalf of Menzies LLP

Charted Accountants and Statutory. Auditor
Ashcombe Hoase

5 The Crescent

Leatherhead

Sufrey

K122 8DY

oete: |\ Q) (Flaes 2015




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Revenue
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT
Administrative expenses

OPERATING LOSS

T R

Finance income: P
Impairment of i investment in subsld»ary

PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX

. Tax charge

PROFITI(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD

QOther comprehensive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.FOR THE 'P.AERIOD.

Notes Yearended 31 Year ended 31
' December 2017 December 2016

$'000 $7000:

87 . (io7)

4 (87) (107)
5 11,163 . 10,244
7 62,181 (107,459)
83257  (97.322)

6 T (2.123) (88)
61,934 . (97:408)

61,134 - (37',406-)

- All revenue and operating resufts are derived from discontinued operations.

The hoteé on pages: 11 to 17 form part of these financial statements.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 DECEMBER 2017

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

fnvestment in subsidiaries
Loanis to subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries
Loans to parent company:
Other receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY

Share: capital

Share premium

Retained earnings.

TOTAL EQUITY.
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans from parent company

Trade and other payables
Income tax

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The ﬁnahcial statements were approved by the board of Directors and authbriséd for issus on Zz"?’!f

and'ﬁr'e—;i@gd on 3

F J Bakhos S )

Company registration number 08804288

Notes

oo 0 o0~

10
10

@ w e

2017 - -2016
$'000 $'000.
- 86,513
- 160,000
- 186,513
103,413 -
133218 21,553
33,615 -
6 6
270,252 208.072
23,700 23,700
270,272 270,272,
(25,917) (87,051)
268,055 206,921
- 992
42 42
2,155 18
2,197 1,152
208,072

270,252

The hotes on pages 11 to 17 form part of these financial statements.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

) Retained
- Share capital Share premium - earnings Total
$'000 $°000 $°000 $°000
As.at 31 December 2015. 23,700 236,079 10,357 - 270,136
Issue of shares - 34,193 - 34,193
Comprehensiye income for period - - (97,408) {97,408)
As at 31 December 2016 * 23,700 270,272 (87,051) 206,921
Issue of shares i ) - - - -
Comprehensive income for period - < 61,134 61,134
As at 31 December 2017 23,700 270272 (25917) 268,055
The notes.on pages 11 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
10




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1. COMPANY INFORMATION

Consteliation Barclay UK Limited is a private company limited by shares and is registered in England and
"Wales. The: Company’s principal activity is. that of an investment company.

~ Tre address of the. company’s registered office is shown on the company information page. Its pnnapal
" place of business is 111 East 48th St, New York, NY 10017, USA.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been gpplied consistently in dealing with iteras which are
consxdered material in relation fo the financial statements, except.as.noted below.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of Constellation Barclay Invest UK Limited have been prepared in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘The Réducéd Disclosure Framework' and the Gompaniés Act

2006.

The directors.intend to wind up the Company: by transferring its investment to other companies within the-
group. This indicates that the Company is no longer a going: concemn. Therefore fhe financial statements -
have been prepared on a break-up basis and the foffowing policies and procedures were |mp|emented

o at 31 December 2017 all noncufrent assets are consndered as realisable, hence reclasslﬁed as
current assets
ait assets have been disclosed at values at which’ they are expected to be realised
all liabilities reflect the full amount at which they are expscted to materialise

Consolidation

The Company has taken advantage- of the exemption availabie from preparing conselidated accounts,
$400 of the Companies Act 2006. As a result the accounts shaw information about thié Company as an
individual entity. Howsver, the Company and ifs sussidiafies will be. included in the conselidated accounts
of the parent company, Canstellation Hotels Holding. Ltd, a company incorporated in Luxembourg. its
registered. office is 15, boulevard Roosevelt L-2450: Luxémbourg.

Financial reporting standard. 101 - reduced disclosure exemptions
The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

« the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Insbuments: Disclosures

o - the fequirements of paragraphs 94-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement:

« the requirement i paragraph 38 of 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements to present
comparativé information in respect of:

o paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS.1;

L ¢ paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16-Property, Plant and. Equlpmem

o the requirements of paragraphs 10(d}, 10(f), 16. 38A, 38B, 38C, 380 40A, 408, 40C, 40D, 111
and 134-136.0f IAS 1 Presentation of Findncial Statements

+ the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows .

« the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 3t of 1AS 8 Awountmg Policies, Changes in Aocounting}
Estimates. and. Ermors
the requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A oFIAS 24 Related Party Disciosures
the requirerrients in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions
entered. into: bétween two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which i§ a
party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a. member

11



CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
investments.in subsidiaries

. Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment in the financial
statements: of the Company Dividends are accounted for when the Company- becomes.entitled to.receive
them. On the disposal of an investment, the difference. between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amaunt is charged or credited t¢ the statement of profit or lass and dther comprehensive income.

Whenever events or-chianges in circunistances indicaté that the carrying value of the investments may not
be recoverable the investment is reviewed for impairment and tmpalred if required. The recoverable value
of investments is thie higher of its fair value less costs to sell and.value in use.

I,r,npalrrnent charges »are-mciuded in the statement of profit or loss-and other compreh_ensive income.
All investmients have been classified as cument assets.
Foreign currencies

The functional arid pfasentabon currency of the: Company is' US Dollar. Téansactions in foreign currencies:
are initially recorded. in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of the
. transaction. Foreign cuirency monetary assets and liapilities: are retransiated at the rates ruling at the
reporting date: All exchange differencés arising on settlement of- foreign currency transactions and on
- retranslation of unsettied monetary assets. and liabilifies are recogmsed lmmednatety in the income
staterment:

Income taxes.
The: tax expense represents the sum of current tax and defermed tax.

The current tax is based on faxable profit or loss for the year. Taxable profit or ioss differs: from net profit
of foss as reported. in thé incoine- statemeénit because it excludes items of income or expense that. are
faxable or deducnble in other pericds and it further excludes. items that are never taxable; or dediictible:

The Ccmpany‘s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by:the reporung date.

Deferred income: tax is recogmsed on ail hemporan/ diffefences. arising between the tax bases of assets
and Iaabilmes and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, with the following exceptions:

e ‘where ﬂqe;temporary drfferenqe arises from: the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset er
liability: in a transaction that is not a business combiination that at the:timé of the- transaction affect
neither accountirig nor taxable profit or loss;

e in fespect of taxable: temporary dlfferences associated witti investments in subsidiariés,
associates and jomt ventures; where the fiming of the reversal of the temporary differences car
Be controlled and it i probable that the temporary differences will riot reverse in the foreseeable’
future; and

» deferred income tax assets are recoghised. only to the extent that it is probable: that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or
tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities. are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are
éxpécted o apply when the related asset is realised or liability is. settled, based on tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

income tax is charged.or credited ‘directly o equity if it relates to items that are credited or charge to
equity. Otherwise mcome tax is recognised in the statement of pmﬁt or loss and other comprehensive:
income.

12



CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2,

SIGNIFIC‘ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments.

A financial instrument is ary: contract that gives rise to a-financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another.

Finandal instuments are generally recognised as saon as the Company becomes party to the contractual
regulafions of the financial inétiument.

All financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. All financial fiabilities are classified as held at
amortised cost. The Company does not have any other classes of financial assets and liabilities.

1).Loans and other receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets witti fised or determinable payménts that are not
quoted in an activeé market. They are inclided in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months aﬂer the end-of the reporting period, these are classified as non-current assets.

2} Trade and otter payables

Trade payables. are obligations to pay for goods or sérvices that havé bsen acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppllers Accounts-payable are classified as cuitent liabilities if payment is due

within one year &f less (of in the normal operating Cycle of the business if longer) If not, thoy are -

presented as:non-current liabilities. .

3) Share capital
Finantigl instrumerits issued by the Company are treated. as equrty only to the extent that they do: not
meet the: definition of a financial habllrty The Company's. ordinary shares aré classed as equity and

recorded at the proceeds récelved, nat of direct issue costs, allowted between: share mpltal and share "

premlum
4) Loans and other. payables

Loans and payables are hon-derivative: ﬁnanaal liabilities. wrth fixed.or determmable payments that.are not
qQuioted in an active: market. They are. inciuded in current iiabilities, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period, these are ¢classified as non-cunent liabilities. Loan. and other
payables comprisé: of intercompany debt and is disclosed as such.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, management arg
requifed fo make judgemerits, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and:
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The. estimates and. underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these esumates ’

The estimates and underlying assumptions: are reviewed on ap ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates. are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if thé revision affects both current and future
pericds.

The carrying value of investments in subsidiaries is. subject to the performarice of the subsidiaries’

investments. The underlying asset, the InterCentinental Barclay Hotel in New York is neviewed for ‘

impairment in ine with sccounting policies qutlined in note 2 to these financial staterents. The. subsvdlary

undertaking has prepared forecasts and obtained third party: valuations, which support the carrymg value:

of the investiment.

13



CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. ‘
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 ‘

. 4 OPERATING LOSS

The operatiiig loss.is stated after chaming:.

Auditors remuneraﬁéﬁ
Gains on foreign:currency exchange
Impairment reversat/(chiarge) on fixed asset investments

Company a'udltqr’s remuneration .
Audit of Compariy accounts

Cther-services
- accounting services.

Total Company auditor’s remuneration

5.  FINANCE INCOME

Interest income on financial assets classified as loans afid receivables

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
23 16
16 (15)
52,181 (107,549)
2017 2016
$000 . $'000
23 16
11 8
34 24 -
. 2017 2016
$'000 $000
" 11,163

10;244




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. INCOME TAX

UK corporation tax

2017 2016

$'000 $2000.
2,123 86

Corporation tax is calculated at 18.25% of the estimated assessable profit for the penied (201 6: 20%).

The charge for the period can be reconciled to the profit per the statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

Factors affecting tax charge for the period:
Profit/{Loss) before taxation

Profit before taxation muitiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 19.25% (2016: 20%)

Effects of:

Group relief

impairment of investment

Adjustmentin respect of prior year

Total cument tax

Tax on profiti{loss).on ordinary activities

7. INVESTMENTS

Cost
At 1 January 2017

Additians
Disposals

At 31 Decamber 2017

Impairment
At 1 January 2017

Impairment.teversal
At 31 December 2M7

Net book value at 31 December 2017
Net book value at 31 December 2016

2017 2016

$°000. $°000:
63,257 (97,322)
12,177 (19,464)

(9) (1,897)

{10,045) 21,491
- 56
2,123 86
2,123 86.

Investiments in
subsidiaries
$'000

193,972
(35,281)

158,691

(107,459)
52,181
(55,278)

103,413
86,513




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

7.

INVESTMENTS (continued)

The company has a direct holding. in the following subsidiary:

Principal place of : P’ercéntag'e'rmd
Country-of btisiness Nature of class of equity
Name . registration L business owned
Constellation Barclay  United States of 111 East:48% Street, New Investment: 100% subscribed
Us, LLC America York, NY 10017, USA  company *  capital

The.company also has an indirect holding in the following cempanies:

Principal place of - . . Percentage and
i : Country of business : Nature of " class of equity
Name ’ : registration business: owned
Conisteliation Barclay  United Kingdem - 114 East 48" Street, New [hvestment 100% ordinary
Invest UK Limited York, NY 10017, USA company shares
Constellation Barclay United States of 111 East 48" Street, New [hvestment: 100% subscribed
Holding US, LLC America York, NY 10017, USA  company capital
111 East-48M Street.  United. States of 411 East 48" Street, New Hotels and 80.1% subscnbed
Holdmgs LLC America - York, NY 10017, USA accommodation - capital

The Company has performed its annual impairment test on the value of its Subsidiary, Consteliation
Bartiay US, LLC. As.at 31 December 2017, the valuation of the underiying hofel asset, determined on the.
basis of value in-use, resulting in an impairment reversal of $52,180,861. ] )

" Key assumptions used io detemmine the vaiue were: the external third party valuation, the- operating

results and thie discount rate. Operating results are baséd on management forecasts of the underlying
fiotel assét The discount rate is derived from. its. welghted average cost of capital (WACC) The WACC
takes Into account both debt and equity.

The cost of equity is derived from the expected retum on investment. The oostof debt is based on
weighted average cost of the: group borrowings. - Specifie risk is ihcorporated by applying individuat beta
factors. The beta factors are evaluated annually based an publicly available market data, Adlustments to
the discount rate are made to factor i in the specific amount-and timing of the futore: tax fiows in order to
refleéct a pre-tax discount rate. In 2017 “the ¢ash flows were discounted at a rate of 8.25%.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES : B
. 2017 . 2016

$'000 $'000
Amounts falling due: within ene year: L
Loans te subsidiaries ) 133,218 21,553
Leans. to parent company . 33,615 L.
Other receivables 6 ‘ 6
166,839 . 21,559
Amounts falling due. within greater than one year:
Leans to subsidiaties. ) - - 100,000
. , ' - .. 100,000
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" CONSTELLATION BARCLAY UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

| YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 o .

8. TRADEAND OT'H'E'R‘ PAYABLES.'_ ‘

2017 2016 -
. $°000 $'000
Amounts falllng due within one year AU ) )
Accruals . e 42 - 42
Loans from’ parent company ' . - 992
income tax . : 2,155 118
2,197 1,152
10. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid
' 31 December 16 .
No of shares Share capital Share premium
N $
" Ordinary shares of$1 each 23,700,116 23,700,146 . 270,271,857
) 31 December 17
No of shires Share capital Share premium
: $ - $
Ordinary shares of $1 each 23,700,116 23.700,116 270,271,857
11. RESERVES
Retained earnings
This reserve records aocumuléted proﬁté less distributions to ownersz..
12, PARENT COMPANY AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
The immediate parent company is Constellation Hotels: Holdings Limited S.A., company incorporated in.
Luxemboutg, .
Thé ultimate parent company. is Prime Capital S.A. Consolidated ﬁnanc1al statements can be obtained
from 15 Boulevard Roosevelt L-2450, Luxembourg.
The ultimate controlling party is' His Excellency She:kh Hamad Bin Jassim Bin Jabr Al-Thani, by the. virtue
of his majority sharehiolding in PAme Capital S.A.
13. 'POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The directors intend to wind up. the Company by transfermring its investment to other companies within the
group after the:balance shieet date.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C A
15, boulevard Roosevealt

L-2450 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Consteilation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. and its
subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at

31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (the “Law of

23 July 2016") and with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs”) as adopted for Luxembourg by the
*Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier' ("CSSF"). Our responsibilities under those Law and
standards are further described in the “resgonsibilities of the “réviseur d'entreprises agrée” for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are also independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("IESBA Code") as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information
The Board of Managers of Constellation Hotels Holding GP S.a ). (the "Generat partner”) is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the consolidated

management report but does not include the consolidated financiat statements and our report of the “réviseur
d'entreprises agréeé” thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing sa, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Managers of the General Partner and those charged with governance
for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Managers of the General Partner is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with iFRS as adopted by the European Union, and for
such internal control as the Board of Managers of the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Managers of the General Partner is
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Managers of the General Partner either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 2
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
"reviseur d'entreprises agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive ta those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Managers of the General Partner.

Conciude on the appropriateness of Board of Managers of the General Partner use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé” to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the “réviseur d'entreprises agréé”. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an apinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, stupervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion. :

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internat control

that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and reguiatory requirements

The consolidated management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Managers of the General
Partner, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

Ermnst & Young
Société anonyme
Cabinet de révision agréé

<:_,_. ne. \::.,l-'
N
Aaip Kinsch

O

Luxembourg, 29 June 2018
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017

ASSETS

{in EUR '000)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

lnvestment in associates and joint ventures
Other non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Inventuies

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Current tax receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Assets of 3 disposal group held-for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

31 Dec. 2017

2502253
195 640
25 866
445 141
57 468

3226 368

4172
27795
1180922
538
92874

1306 301

60 607

4593276

31 Dec. 2016

3237761
1128436
883502
9888
459 366
59449

5778 402

6211
42 597
315857
9465
211284

585414

6363816




Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(in EUR '000)

EQUITY

Issued share capital

Legal reserve

Contribution without issue of shares
Foreign currency translation reserve
Other reserves

Asset revaluation surplus

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current Labilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade payables

Other current payables

Current tax payables

Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities associated with the disposal group held for sale

TOTAL UABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

31 Dec. 2017

166 031
676
1135191
{181 326)
(46 874)
538 402
(399 987)
1212113
55072

1267185

2351082
353197
4118

17 527
9733

2735657
351415
61492
27 300
1185 "
4574
545 966
44 468

3326 091

4593276 °

The accompanying notes are an iqgegm?‘ﬁ'ﬁ?i of these consolidated financial statements.
575
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31 Dec. 2016

166 031
676
1397205
(106 309}
{18 939)

(185697)
1252967
79 860

1332827

3619975
394 573
8732
22125
20 709

4066 114
787 612
58 149
107 708
6498
4908

964 875

S 030989

6363 816
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 3| December 2017

(in EUR '000)

Revenue

Fair value adjustments in investment properties
Operating expense

Other operating income

Operating loss

Other non-operating income

Other non-operating expense

Finance income

Finance expense

Share of prolit of associates and joint ventures
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Income tax credit

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-Controlling Interests {NCI)

Notes For the year
ended 31
Oecember 2017

570520
(830613)
72171

{187 922)

105

(3 164)
118 466
{244 086)
379

52 063

(264 159)
10973

{253 186)

{214 289)
(38 897)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
A tegra =

For the year
ended 31
December 2016

588 311
(72 988)
(585 349)
62210

(8 816)

2456

(12 267)
65 784
{168 801)
1459

(120 185)
45 308

{74 877)

(67 001)
(7 876)




Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(in EUR 000}
LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Remeasurements losses on defined benefit plans
Net gains on derivative financial instruments

Net other comprehensive income/ (loss) to be reclassified
in the P&L in subsequent period

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
Disposal of subsidiaries

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income/ (loss) not to be
reclassified in the P&L in subsequent period

Other comprehensive income/{loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-Controlling Interests (NCI)

x(»tms-»v»w"' -

. .,g:‘/"‘»

Notes

For the year
ended 31
December 2017

{253 186)

(1574)
2041

467

534 698
{7519)
(68 945)

458 234
458 701

205 515

221161
(15 646)

The accompanying notes are an integral part o&gbes“é’%nsolidated financial statements.
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For the year
ended 31
December 2016

(74 877)

(14 655)
2467

(12 188)

{122 312)

(122312)

(134 500)

(209377)

(200 304)
(9073)
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017

{in EUR '000)

Operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net
cash flows

Depreciation and write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Loss in fair value of property, piant and
equipment

Change in fair value of investment properties and
derivative

Adjustment for ather non-cash items

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Interest income

Interest expense

Working capital adjustments

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other
receivables, prepayments-and inventory .

Increase/{Decrease} in trade and other payables

Received/paid interest and income taxes
Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Ilnvesting activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
{Acquisition)/redemption of bonds and loans

Acquisition of associates and joint veatures, net
of cash acquired
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed

Held for sale, net of cash

Net cash flows used in investing activities

AN YN s

s

Notes For the year
ended 31
December 2017

{264 159)

87 069
205726

64 500

{1302)

8773
(379)
{52 063)
(16 459)
220757

(31 220)

94 269

16 459
(126 319)
(7511)
198 201

(219 218)
(82 305)
(19931)
(25 293)

{124 932)
(4 552)
(476 487)

For the year
ended 31
December 2016

(120 185)

94 323

4785

73 350

20770
{1459)
(25 863)
158097

373857

(8571)

25 863
(144 651)
(2 852)
160 504

(197 S63)
(104 927}
85 Q05

(8 429)

(225,914)




The accompanying notes are an integra
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows (coutinued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Financing activities

Contribution without issue of shares
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange difference

Net increase/{decrease) in restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at 1
January

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at 31
December.

125408

61304
(29 252)
157 460

(120826}

(3 232)
5648

211284

92 874

msolidated financial statements.

113676
34 853
(126 983)
21546

(43 864)

{4 668)
(18 160)

277976

211284
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2017
tssued tegal Contribution Foreign Other Asset Retained Equity Non- Total Equity
share © reserve without issue’ currency reserves revaluation earnings attributabie controlling
capital of shares translation surplus 10 equity interests {NCI}
reserve holders of the
parent
company
ALY january 2016 166 031 676 1283529 14 806 {7 305} - (118 696) 1339041 76 086 1409127
+ the period - - - - - - {67 001) {67 001) (7 876) (74 877)
Comprehensive [0ss - - - (121 125) (12 188} - - {133303) (1197) {134 500)
i comprehensive Loss - - - (121 115) {12 188) - (67 001) (200 304) (9073) {209377)
centeibuticn without issuing R . 113 676' ) R - . 113676 18847 132523
ri scape of consolidation - - . - 554 - - 554 . 554
1 December 2016 166 031 676 1397 205 (106 309) (18 939) - (185 697) 1252967 79 860 1332827
i the period - - - - - - (214 289) {214 289} (38 837} {253 186)
Comprehensive income/(Loss) - - - (75017} - (27 935) 538 402 - 435450 23251 458 701
| comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - - {75 017) (27 935) 538 402 {214 289) 221161 (15 646) 205515
‘pei::ls:omribuzion without R B (362 014y B N R . {262 014) {9 142) (271 156)
= 21 December 2017 166 031 676 1135191 (181 326) (46 874) 538 402 {399 987} 1212113 55072 1267 185
" Repayment for an amount of {EUR 387 422 thousand) anc issuing for an amount of EUR 125 408 thousand.
The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
15 °
Y




Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at 31 December 2017

Note 1: Corporate information

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. (hereafter “Constellation Hotels Holding”, the “Company”) was
incorporated as a public limited company (“Société Anonyme”)} in Luxembourg on 26 March 2012.

On 31 Becember 2013, the shareholders decided to change the legal form of the Company to transform it into a
partnership limited by shares {"Société en commandite par actions”} under Luxembourg law. At the same date
the shareholders decided to decrease the share capital of the Company from EUR 400 031 000 to EUR
166 031 000. The registered office of the Company is at 15, boulevard Roosevelt, L-2450 Luxembourg, and the
Company is registered in the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register under the number 8 167.941.

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. and its subsidiaries {hereafter the “Group”) is engaged in acquisition of
hotels, commercial, retail as well as mixed-use real estate properties and investment in financial instruments.

The Group is owned by the following shareholders:

 Percentage of - Pércentage of:

ownershlp 2017 ownershlp 2016.
.0 199.9 . 89.99%: "
r $49.99%
Constel!ation Hotels Hoidmg GRS L 0001%, ..
Régis Limited SBRE, . 70 - 10 I (gkaibourg: T 0 001%:
As of 31 December 2017 Regzs Investment S A sold 49.99% representmg 830 1SS sharos and Regis Limited S a
r.l. sold 0.01% representing 1 unlimited share of the Group to Prime Capital S.A. and Constellation Hotels Holding
GP S.ar.l respectively.

Country of :
mcorporatton

The consolidated financial statements were authorized by the Board of Managers of Constellation Hotels Holding
GPS.ar.l, (the “Management Company”), on 29 june 2018.

Note 2: Significant accounting policies

2.1, Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union (IFRS).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis applying a historical cost basis,
except for, property, plant and equipment, investment properties and derivative financial instruments that have
been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in EUR and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
{EUR '000}, except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financiai statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.2. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2017.

Control is achieved when the Group is expased, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

- . Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary. ‘

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and tothe non-controiting interests, eVen if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated
in full on consotidation. '

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a foss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), fiabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill}, liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

17




Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.3.1. Business combinations and loss of control and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the progortionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrumentand within the scope
of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized either in either profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabifities assumed). if the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss. :

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combinatiaon, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. )

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the dispased operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The loss of control while retaining a residual equity interest may he analyzed as the disposal of a controlling
interest followed by the acquisition of a non-controlling interest. This process involves, as of the date when

control is lost:

The recognition of a gain or loss on disposal, comprising:
o Again or loss resulting from the percentage ownership interest sold ;
o A gain or loss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of the ownership interest
retained in the entity.
- The other comprehensive income items are reclassified in the profit or loss resulting from the ownership

interest disposed.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 Decemaber 2017

Transactions with non-controlling interests in fully consofidated companies that do not result in a loss of control,
are accounted for as equity transactions, with no effect on profit or loss or on other comprehensive income.

2.3.2.  Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement wliereby the parties that have joint contro! of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of controf of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influeace or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venture since
the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment separately.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of
profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or {oss after tax and non-controlling interests in the
subsidiaries of the joint venture,

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group '
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and
its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture upon toss of significant influence over the joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is: .
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve manths after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settied in the normal operating cycle
- it is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
- twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
2.3.3.  Fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives, and non-financial assets such as investment
properties, property, plant and equipment at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sefl an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and far which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a. Level 1: Fair value measured by reference to quoted grices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

b. Level 2: Fair value measured by reference to inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices);

c. Llevel 3: Fair value measured by reference to inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as property plant and equipment and the
recoverable amounts of the cash generating units. Involvement of external valuersis determined annually by the
Group management after discussion with and approval by the Company’s Board of Directors. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Group management analyses the movements in the values of assets which are
required to be remeasured as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Group management
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Group management, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

2.34.  Revenue recognition

In accordance with IAS 18 “Revenue”, revenue corresponds to the value of goods and services sold in the ordinary
course of business by fully consolidated companies. The Group applies the guidance provided in IAS 18 to
determine whether it acts as the principal or an agent in its contractual hotel management relationships. For the
purpase of applying 1AS 18, the Group is considered as acting as the principal when it has expaosure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the rendering of services. In this case, the revenue and related
expenses are reported separately in the income statement. When the above criterion is not met, the Group is
considered as acting as an agent and only the remuneration corresponding to the agency fee is recognized in
revenue. In accordance with 1AS 18 “Revenue”, revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of all discounts and rebates, VAT, other sales taxes and fair value of customer loyalty
programs. Revenue from product sales is recognized when the product is delivered and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred-to the buyer.

Revenue from sales of services is recognized when the service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.35. Taxes
2.35.1. Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement
of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

2.3.5.2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in jaint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlted and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit wili be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
- credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except; :

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or lia bi‘Iity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised .

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised delerred tax assets gre re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.
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‘Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition
at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The
adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill {as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred
during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceabie right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabifities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

2.3.6. Foreign currency transiation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is also the parent company’s
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct
method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or Joss that is reclassified to profit or
loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

2.3.6.1. Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liahilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date. '

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment in-a foreign
operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on thase
maonetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histarical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OC or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

2.3.6.2. Group Companies

On consolidation, the assets and liahilities of foreign operations are translated into euros at the rate of exchange
orevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on transtation for consolidation are recognised
in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OC! relating to that particular foreign operation is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cout.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3.6.3. Disposal group Held for sale

The Group classifies disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for
sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as curreat items in the statement
of financial position.

2.3.7.  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are performed annually.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCl and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase
is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss applying the straight line method at the rates specified below. The

difference between the depreciation under the cost model and the depreciation under the revaluation model is -

recognised in the revaluation reserve directly. Depreciation on all additions in fixed assets is charged from the
date in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the date of disposal,

Item
tand
Building:
?Iarit; an:d{ﬁiac c.

'Fu’i:h'i‘tb(é;"ﬁt;'tihgs éﬁd-,equibment;

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset} is included in the statement of profit or {oss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Description of the valuation techniques used are disclosed in Note 7.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3.8.  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borcowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.3.9. Investment properties

Investment properties gre measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recagnition, investment properties are stated at fair value which reflects market conditions at the reporting date.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based on an annual
valuation performed by an accredited external independentvaluer applying a valuation model recommended by
the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.

Description of the valuation techniques used are disclosed in Note 9.
2.3.10. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied-in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recagnised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit fevel. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
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A summary of useful lives of Group's intangible assets is, as follows:

tem o R - Usefullifeinyears

:Concessmns, patentsand licenses, - . . . o f. S st
-‘Othermtangnb(es (mcludmg management contract) B R A-,'j‘ R . ".A";-30'tq-41--.
-GoodwillandBrands - - . . ... S e T L indefinite.

2.3.11. Ffinancial instruments - initial recognition and subsecjuent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

2.3.11.1. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments AFS financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Loans and receivables
= Held-to-maturity investments

Financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39. The Group has not designated any financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group does not have any financial asset to be measured on fair value through profitor loss.

Loans and reccivables

As defined by IAS 39 - Financial instruments, “Loans and receivables” mainly comprise loans to non-consolidated
companies. They are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost at each
balance-sheet date. If there is an objective indication of impairment, an impairment loss is recognized at the
balance-sheet date. The impairment loss corresponds to the difference between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount (i.e. the present value of the expected cash flows discounted using the original effective
interest rate) and is recognized in profit or loss. This loss may be reversed if the recoverable amount increases in
a subsequent period.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investment are bonds which the Group has the ability and intent to hotd until maturity. Held-
to-maturity debt investment s are recorded at amortized cost, adjusted for the amartization or discounts using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is

primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position} when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that refiects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to reply.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group

of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flaws, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present vatue of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
EIR.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income {recorded as finance income in the statement of profit or loss)
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans, together with the associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.11.2.Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
loans and horrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and pavyables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial fiabilities include trade and
‘other payables, shareholders and bank loans, and derivative financial instruments.

Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loagns and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EfR-amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer to Note 16.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability ace substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.11.3. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

2.3.12. ODerivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as, interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contractis
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under I1AS 39 are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as cost of sales.

Any gains or fosses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

2.3.13. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, in accordance with 1AS 2 - inventories. »
Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method.

2.3.14. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing fur an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. in determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation modet is used. These calculations are corroborated
by vaiuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies ar other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepa?ed
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment {osses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties previously revalued with the
revaluation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCi up to the amount of any
previous revaluation. : ) )

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previousiy recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

2.3.15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqguivalents include cash at bank and on hand, and short-term deposits with a maturity of three
manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The consolidated statement of cash flows is presented on the same basis as the management reporting schedules
used internally to manage the business. it shows cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.

Cash flows from operating activities inctude:

- Funds from operations, before non-recurring items and after adjustment for changes in deferred taxes
and gains and losses on disposals of assets.

- Cash received and paid on non-recurring transactions.

- Changes in working capital.

Cash flows from investing activities comprise:

- Renovation and maintenance expenditure to maintain in a good state of repair operating assets held at
January 1 of each year.

- Development expenditure, including the fixed assets and working capital of newly consolidated
subsidiaries and additions to fixed assets of existing subsidiaries.

- Development expenditure on non-current assets classified as held for sale.

- Proceeds from disposals of assets. ’ ‘

Cash flows from financing activities inciude:

- Changes in equity.
- Changesin debt.
- Dividends.

2.3.16. Provisions

In accordance with IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, a provision is recognized
when the Group has a present obligation (legal, contractual or implicit) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, in
application of certain a‘ssumptions, Provisions are discounted when the effect of the time value of money is
material, using a discount rate that reflects c;:rrent market assessments of the time value of money. The most
commonly applied rates are the prime long-term corporate bond rate or the government bond rate. Provisions
far restructuring costs are recorded when the Group has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and the
plan’s main features have been announced to those affected by it as of the close of accounts.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3.17. Pensions and other post-employment benefits

Under defined contribution plans, the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay benefits.
Contributions under these plans are recognized immediately as an expense.

For defined benefit plans, under which the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to provide agreed benefits
to current and future employees in exchange for a given level of service (including multi-employer plans when
the manager is able to provide the necessary information), the Group’s obligations are determined in accordance
with 1AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Group's obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method based
on actuarial assumptions related to future salary levels, retirement age, mortality, staff turnover and the discount
rate. These assumptions take into account the macro-economic environment and other specific conditions in the
various host countries. Pension and other retirement benefit obligations take into account the market value of
plan assets, The amount recognized in the statement of financial position corresponds to the discounted present
value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair valus of plan assets, Any surpluses, corresponding to the
excess of the fair value of plan assets over the projected benefit obligation, are recognized only when they
represent the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan. Current service cost, past service cost, administrative expense, and taxes for
the year, and paid contributions and benefits are recognized in operating expense, whereas net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset) is recognized In financial expense {income).

For post-employment benefits, actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and
experience adjustments are recognized immediately in equity. However, actuarial gains and losses on long-term
benefit obligations towards active employees {such as jubilees, seniority bonuses...} are recognized directly in
profit or loss in net financial expense.

Employee benefits expense includes all amounts paid or payable to employees, including statutory and
discretionary profit-sharing, pension contributions, payroll taxes and the cost of share-based payments.

2.4. Change in accounting policies and disclosure

The Group re-assessed its accounting for property, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of all
classes of property, plant and equipment after initial recognition. The Group had previously measured all
property, plant and equipment using the cost model whereby, after initial recognition of the asset classified as
property, plant and equipment, the asset was carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

On 31 December 2017, the Group elected to change the method of accounting for land, building and plant and
machinery classified as property, plant and equipment, as the Group believes that the revaluation model
provides more relevant information to the users of its financial statements. The Group applied the revaluation
model prospectively, After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at fair value at the
date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, For details refer to Note 7. ’

2.4.1.  New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2017.
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The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:
24.1.1. Amendments tc IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative project and introduce additional disclosure
requirements intended to address investors’ concerns that financial statements do not currently enable them to
understand the entity’s cash flows; particularly in respect of the management of financing activities.

The amendments require disclosure of information enabling users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, instead they clarify that financing activities are based on the existing
definition used in IAS 7.

Although there is no specific format required to comply with the new requirements, the amendments include
illustrative examples to show how an entity can meet the objective of these amendments.

The Group has adopted the amendment in the current year but the amendment did not affect the Group’s
financial statements.

2.4.1.2. Amendment to IAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

The amendments clarify that unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value in the financial
statements but at cost for tax purposes can give rise to deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clarify that:

- the carrying amount of an asset does nat limit the estimation of probahle future taxable profits; and
that

- when comparing deductible temporary differences with the future taxable profits, the future taxable
profits excludes tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those deductible differences.

" The Group has adopted the amendment in the current year but the amendment did not affect the Group’s
financial statements.

2.4.1.3. Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycie

Amendments to IFRS 12 disclosure of interests in other entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirement in IFRS 12. The amendment clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the Standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to any interests that are classified
* asheld for sale, held for distribution to owners or discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5:Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,

As 31 December 2017, the Group classified its interest in a Hotel in France, a wholly owned subsidiary, as held
for sale (see Note 21), but these amendments did not affect the Group’s financial statements.

2.4.1.4. Standard issued but not vet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, are disclosed below. The Group intends
to adopt these standards, when they become effective.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.4.1.5. IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In July 2014, the 1ASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application
is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 {2009,
2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015. The adoption of IFRS S
will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. IFRS 9 has been endorsed by the EU on 22
November 2016. The group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate
comparative information.

2.4.1.6. IFRS 1S Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer, The principies
in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard
is applicable to all entities and will stipersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a
full or madified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
early adoption permitted. IFRS 15 has been endorsed by the £U on 22 September 2016 and the group plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate comparative information. The Group
is still in process of assessing the impact of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements.

2.4.1.7. Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

-The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and 1AS-28 in dealing with the loss of centrol of a

subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an
investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of uarelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these
amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively. The

Group will apply these amendments when they become effective.

2.4.1.8. iFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under I1AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets {e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability
to make lease payments {i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
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Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events {e.g., a change
in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resuiting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under 1AS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in 1AS 17 and distinguish between two
types of leases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under 1AS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but
not before an entity applies IFRS 15. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group has assessed the impact of the standard and concluded that it will not have material impact on the
financial statements.)

24,2, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (issued in December 2016}

IERS 1 First-time Adoption of International Fingnciql Reporting Standards- Deletion of short-term exemptions for
first-time adopters IFRS 1

The proposed amendment would delete the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of IFRS 1, because the
relief provided in those exemptions was relevant for reporting periods than have now passed and, as such, has

served its intended purpose.

The exemptions in these paragraphs atlowed first-time adopters the same transition relief as existing IFRS
preparers with respect ta:

- providing certain comparative disclosures about financial instcuments, which were required as a result
of several amendments to [FRS 7; -

- providing comparative information for the disclosures required by IAS 19 about the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to actuarial assumptions; and

- retrospective application of the investment entities requirements of IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27.

The IASB is also proposing to delete the requirement in paragrabh E6 of IFRS 1 to assess whether an entity is an
investment entity based on facts and circumstances at the date of transition to IFRSs on the basis that this has
the same outcome as requiring the assessment to be made retrospectively. The amendment is effective from 1
January 2018. This amendment is not applicable to the Group. .

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Cansideration

The Interpretation clarifics that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or incéme (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liabifity
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, then the éntity must determine the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration, Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
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Alternatively, an entity may appiy the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope
that are initially recognised on or after:

- The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation, or
The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application of
interpretation is permitted and must be disclosed. However, since the Group’s current practice is in line with the
Interpretation, the Group does not expect any effect on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of JAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

- Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

- The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

- How an entity determines taxable profit {tax 10ss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates

- How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should
be followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
but certain transition reliefs are available. The Group will apply interpretation from its effective date. Since the
Group operates in a complex multinational tax environment, applying the Interpretation may affect its
consolidated financial statements and the required disclosures. In addition, the Group may need to establish
processes and pracedures to obtain information that is necessary to apply the Interpretation on a timely basis.
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Note 3: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

3.1. Judgements

in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

311, Business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own rea! estate. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether
each acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of an asset. The Group accounts for
an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired in addition to the
property. More specifically, consideration is made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired and,
in particular, the extent of services provided by the subsidiary {e.g., maintenance, cleaning, security,
bookkeeping, hotel services, etc.). When the acquisition of subsidiaries does not represent a business, it is
accounted for as an acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the
assets and liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values, and no goodwill or deferred tax is recognised.

3.1.2. Operating fease contracts ~ the Group as iessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements (such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commergial property), that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

3.1.3. Disposal group held for sale

On S May 2017, the Board of Directors of the Group announced its decision to sell the hotel Palais de la
Méditerranée wholly owned hy Societé du Palais de la Mediterranée, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
Operations of Societé du Palais de la Mediterranée are classified as a disposal group held for sale. The Board
considered the subsidiary to meet the criteria to be classified as hetd for sale at that date for the following

reasons:

- The actions to complete the sale were initiated and are expected to be completed within one year from

the date of initial classification;
- The buyer is identified and negotiations as at the reporting date are completed;
- The shareholders approved the plan to sell on 31 December 2017.

For more details an the disposal group held for sale, refer to Note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

3.1.4.  Shareholder loans

The Group determined that the mechanism of the variable interest under the shareholders loans does not meet
the definition of a derivative under IAS 39 since the variable interest component contains an underlying profit
that is a non-financial variable specific to one party to the contract. In making this judgment, management
considered that the performance of the Group is driven by a number of different factors many of which are
clearly non-financial in nature, for example the general business risks faced by the entity or management actions.
Therefore, variable interests under shareholders loans are carried at their amortized cost.

3.2, Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and ather key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3.2.1.  Revaluation of Property plant and equipment and investment property

The fair value of investment property is determined by real estate valuation experts using recognized valuation
techniques and the principles of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Investment property under construction is
measured based on estimates prepared by independent real estate valuation experts, except where such values
cannot be reliably determined. In addition, it measures the property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts,
with changes in fair value being recognised in OCl. The properties were valued by reference to transactions
involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition. The Group engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess fair values of property plant and equipment as at 31 December 2017.

The significant methods and assumptions used by valuers in estimating the fair value of investment property and
property, plant and equipment are set out in Note 7 and 9.

3.2.2.  Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation
is based on a DCF (Discountéd Cash Flow) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the OCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes, These estimates are most refevant to goodwill and other intangibles with
indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount
for the different CGUs are disclosed and further explained in Note 6.
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3.2.3. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and
the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual
results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments
to tax income and expenses already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates,

for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The.

amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences in
interpretation may arise for a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
Group Company’s domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the leve! of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies (refer to Note 22).
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Note 4: Group structure

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated financial statements of the Group include the foliowing entities:

Fully consolidated subsidiaries (global method) _

. Countryof % equity. interest
Prlncnpal actuulties; o lncorpuration 07 . 2016

., France.: o . . 100%:

‘France';’; S - 100%
: S - 100%
J100%
. 100%" -
- 1’0‘0‘% o

oldmg.company L

" France " L.
France

SR 100%-‘«.;:._
%.": 80:01%
o 100%,,:

Luxembourg
Hungary -

Constel atnonaSurrev Ho dmg S‘A . loourg: 70
Constellatnon ‘Boston] 'dmgSA SRR ::Ho!dlngcompany B . Luxembourg” " 100%.:
~Constellation BostontEC. ... ., i Holdingcompany - CUSA- . T

Associates :
: y "% eqwty mterest
- 2016

Constetlatnon us Hotels Holdmg SA o o o

. Copley.Plaza: Sole:Member LLE: ‘: : ) O ' Hdidfhgcomp'éﬁy - : :US'A L s T
rcomc-Coplev Plaza. Mezz: Borrowertt - -, - - Holdmg compary . . usa ¢ sis . . o

lconicCopleyPlazatiotel (bC - | . . -HotelBusiness- i . USA . 51% ... -
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Main changes in scope of consolidation

Entry in scope of consolidation

Ballef P'ropertiés SA - ' - A
" industry SolutionsKft © -. ... . ... .. Holdingcompany . . Hungary - 100%. . _ -
SélénéS.a.r.l
'  Séléné: Holdings: td. :

. Séléné-Midco: Ltd;(Sub—consol«datlon)

Constellatlon us Hotels Holding S.A.

. HotéhBusiness © .70 T UK L 100%.

: * Holding'company: - .. LuxemBourg.
.ZConstellatlonUSHotelsHoldmgS‘A oing. P y I ¢

Conste“ tron oston HoldlngSA . ’ Holdlngcompany“fi . xembourg“‘:"

" “lconic.CoplayPlaza Hotek LG

Exit from scope of consolldatlon .
. Country of S
- : lncorporatlon‘ ’

L ~4'-?‘;‘eas't’i’§"fi?fqpé&?"‘- i :Bu?‘ssf:n\g;gm

_;;Name S activities

treetfnvestmentsl 2 D

Selene S ar. l
‘Coroifittd: RIS R S rmL L s
Claridge’s: Hotel Hotdmgs Ltdi(Sub- L
fconsol(dauon) ETRTIER JE
Constellation Hote! UK S A
'3'Constellat|on Hotel:tiK:
Constellatic
. Helens RE S.A.
HelensRE'S:A. | _
: HelensRE T Comme iz stments: -
Helens RE HfCommerc:al lnvestmentsf
“"Helens: REIIL Commercial Invéstments.
i Heleris REIV:Gommaergial Investments SR
Constellation OWS Holding S.A.
CoﬁStE!'étfiQf!ingﬁ‘d!d?ﬁ&'$3ﬁ=
. Constellatio OWS Corporationine. - -
P OneWall Strast Holdmgs ELC
:E":. MIP One:Wall: Street'Mezzanine:

-::UKATT it

" ;Holdingcompany - "

" Luxeribourg- "

" HotelBusiness . "
... ‘Luxembourg.

.. *HotelBusiriess: -

Ste(Opgoy Uk S,

.. Holding company:-, ” " kuxembourg:
" Investrent. Propertya Greece: |
Investment Property: “Greece [
“investent Property’ i .. . Greece’ i
“Investment Property- . -

“Luxembourgs, (- r - o7 100%..
WA ‘100%
3 ty L USRS 00:01%
. ‘!nvestment Propertyuw Con 7 USAL

S Holdmgcompany
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” C&ﬁstellaiior{ Hbtels France Group Hol&ing S.A.
- Gonstellation Hotels:France'Group, Holdings A .- Holding company i Luxembourg“ S T100%, -

S‘-.‘A:S.j‘ )

Constenatlon Hotels Italy Sl
: Constellatlon Hotels: ltalySr,' i

Constellatlon Hungary (formely CHH France 2) S A
) Constellatron Hungary_
Property Market Kft
- KopasziGatKet ¢

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Exit from scope of consolidation (cont.) :
Countryof . . % equity interest .

Conitellition Hotels France Grand'S:A. . 1"~ | . "Holdingcompany’ .. = Luxembourg.. -~ - . -100% -
Soclété des Hotels lnterContmentat France,: : - : '

> :Holdmgcompany" i P e 100%.

2 "Hotel Busmess.,j L T 00%:
"Aljfotej.- Business: - .

Hotetisiness - |- France

' _ 100%

. HotelGusiness. .

; 100%.
- HotelBusiness ..

Constellatron HoteISzManagement.S [

Iy CHH France 2)5 ST

e Hotet& Retatl Busmess .~H9“%a"»\,'-: L :Z v ‘ : ':

In 2017, all entities are fully consolidated in the consolidated financial statements except for the new affiliated
companies Copley Plaza Sole Member LLC and its subsidiaries, which is consolidated following the equity method
as it is a Joint Venture jointly controlied by both members. :

In 2016, all entities are fully consolidated in the cansalidated financial statements except for the associate
Praperty Market Kft. and Kopaszi Gat Kft., which are consolidated following the equity method (owned by 40%
by the Group).
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 5: Capital management

The Group’s main capital management objective is to maintain robust capital ratios in order to facilitate business
operations and maximize shareholder value.

Its capital structure is managed and adjusted to keep pace with changes in economic conditions, by adjusting
dividends, returning capital to shareholders or issuing new shares. Capital management objectives, policies and
procedures were unchanged in 2017.

The main indicator used for capital management purposes is the debt-to-equity ratio {equity including
shareholder loans for capital management purposes). The group does not have ratio on a maximum debt-to-
equity ratio. For the purpose of calculating the ratio, net debt is defined as all short and long term borrowings
(except shareholder loans for capital management purposes), including derivative financial instruments with
negative fair values and bank overdrafts less cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial instruments with
positive fair values.

Equity includes the Group’s share of reserves and retained earnings, and unrealised gains and losses recognized
directiy in equity, but exclude non-controlling interests.

{in EUR '000) 31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (refer to Note 16) . . 13%7968° ., 2387623
Accrued interests (refer to Note 16) 4848 - 3130
Derivate financial instruments (refer to Note 17) R 2.7 A 7 % U1
Non interest-bearing loans ; 197865 "33
Less: cash and short-term deposits SRR ~(»9_g-,.t;"'m),'«,-._
Net debt G rarsase

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Shareholders loans and third party loans including capitalized interest
{refer to Note 16)

Total capital : . .

Capital and net debt 38400337 VY Ui5471°395.

Debt- to - equity ratio (Net debt / Total capital) {%) ‘ Dot tgaes s T o 80%
42
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017

Note 6: Intangible assets

The table below shows the Concessions, patents and licenses, other intangibles and goodwill at the closing date:

Concessions,
patents and
(in EUR '000) licenses

At 01 January 2016 .. 450

Acquisition

Disposal
Amortisation
Exchange difference
At 31 December 2016
Acquisition

Disposal

Disposal of subsidiaries
Transfer
Amortisation
Impairment

Assets held for sale

Exchange difference,
At 31 December 2017

Other intangibles

Goodwill TOTAL

641969 - 956833F
EORE TP €.
ST
(68864
883502

314418, .

- a2asd)

{#58972)

D ey
. (200°984);
e
.. 195640

o Eees)l T
L (svey
LGy
L zvdgrilio i 173928

" The disposal total amount of EUR 458 872 thousand due to the disposal of subsidiaries is composed of the London
hotels for a total amount of EUR 339 014 thousand, the Italian hotels for EUR 18 804 thousand and the French

hotels for EUR 101 154 thousand as follows:

Concessions,
patents and

{in EUR '000) licenses

the London hotel PSR N

the italian hotels CinreTn
the French hotels N 60 SR

Total disposal of subsidiaries <. (17}

Other intangibles

e _“2(511‘88_".‘5{ .

Goodwill TOTAL

. (2eae3). - oo (339014)
AT (1880a)

T (101154)

L merse)
‘(225498) .\ (458'992)

214565} ..

(233457). -

As of 31 December 2017, the other intangible assets are mainly composed of the management contracts
recognised on the acquisition of one of the London hotel for an amount of EUR 3 043 thousand (2016: EUR 95 774

thousand} and the Italian hotels for an amount of EUR 17 575

43

thousand (2016: EUR 18 950 thousand}.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 3t December 2047

6.1. Impairment

The Group perfarmed its annual impairment test in December 2017 and 2016. The Group considers the
relationship between the value of the business and its book value, among other factors, when reviewing for
indicatars of impairment. As at 31 December 2017, the valuation of the hotel CGUs based on the future cash flow
was higher than the book value, in particular due to significant revaluation uplift recorded by the Group in
relation to the property plant and equipment due to change in accounting policy (refer to Note 2) . As a result
the Group has reported the impairment in Goodwill to reduce the carrying values of CGUs to theirs recoverabie
amount.

The recoverable amount as at 31 December 2017 was determined at the level of the CGU. The CGU were
determined as an individual hotel business. In determining recoverable amount of the CGU, the Group has used
the fair value less cost of disposal {FVLCD) which was based on the cash flows discounted at a pre-tax rate
between 6.14% t0 9.75% (2016: 4.6% to 2.5%).

6.2. Key assumption used in value in use calcufation

- Rental income growth;
Discount rate;
- Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecasted period.

Rental income growth — A yield is based on average income received from these properties in the three years
preceding the beginning of the budget period. These are increased over the budget period for anticipated
efficiency improvements. An increase of 3.75% to 5.40% was agplied.

Discount rates — Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking
into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of
the Group and its different business units and is derived from its weighted average cost of capitai (WACC). The
WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on
investment by the Group’s investors. The cost of debt is based on weighted average cost of the group borrowings.
Business unit specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors are evaluated
annually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the discount rate are made to factor in the
specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order to reflect a pre-tax discount rate.

Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period ~ Rates are based on published industry

research. "

The management has performed the impairment test for all individual hotel business as at 31 December 2017
and has concluded to register an impairment related to the French hotels in Consteliation France S.A.S. for EUR
188 253 thousand and to the Italian hote! in CU.GI.MI Spa for EUR 13 691 thousand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Description of valuation techniques used to determine the recoverable amount of CGUs and related key inputs to those refated recoverable amounts are sensitive are set
out in the table below: .

‘Campani
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017




Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 3| December 2017

Note 7: Property, plant and equipment

3 The movements for the year are as follows:

Plant,
Land and machinery Construction
Building and in progress
equipment

Total

(in EUR '000)

Cost or valuation
At 01 January 2016 : 0 3226194
Reclassification Y -7 8
Additions

e

[ 282579 0 23027 . C3S3LA0D.

TAS

Disposal O . RO .
Cxchange rate difference (253140} ' (41877) A .
At 31 December 2016 - 3’97()2?172'? ©LTB08932 62608
Reclassification (131434) L . 59468
Additions ETRR - - JER ()
Disposal of subsidiaries b (1 1 6“7) oS 0
Revaluation gain/{loss) 76600 (82
Write off (27178’ 63

iale

(291,651,
L ¥BTM2
{145 8aay

Assets held for sale
§ Exchange rate difference i (118 )
At 31 December 2017 L 2278380470 K

T

Depreciation and impairment
At 01 January 2016 . : 11395 T 0278
L. 48

Reclassification

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposal S : 399}
Exchange rate difference s 614 ".:::_ ' (15711) :
At 31 December 2016 . el A78670°0 . 70281
Reclassification (103216)
Depreciation charge for the year :;" 25032

Disposal of subsidiaries (31 875):. ; :
a4 Assets held for sale “ . (16406) L (537)

Sy

By G

Exchange rate difference
>
B At 31 December 2017

Net book value )
= At 31 December 2016 ot 2940802 230651, 1 62608 ¢ " 3237761
At 31 December 2017 2274140 1207420 U Y L 2502253

{8
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The disposal total net amount of EUR 1358 761 thousand due to the disposal of subsidiaries is composed of the
tondon hotels for a total amount of EUR 944 871 thousand, the Italian hotels for EUR 103 368 thousand and the
French hotels for EUR 310 522 thousand as follows:

. Plant, .

Lan.d imd machinery and @nstructuon Total

Building N in progress
{in EUR '000) equipment
the London hotel . &,733:565)}; . (92 431).. " .:(68874) . (944:871)
the Rtalian hotels Colie2 362),,]__ S(2O0L):; - "3-.‘,(‘%'"(5?513'-. “- 7 {103:368)
the French hotels - (303 8443:'...‘ o <(‘1-041)}* -5 637)2 R "'(310 52'2)'
Total disposal of subsidiaries L 179.972) . . (95473} '(83 515) (1 353 761)

Construction work in progress mainly represents refurbishment work carried out on French hotels in
Constellation France S.A.S. The construction is expected to be completed in 2018.

The impairment of the year 2016 is related to the Intercontinental Barclay in Constellation Barclay US, LLC for
EUR 37 484 thousand {USD 41 431 thousand).

7.1, Reconciliation of carrying amount

. R 31 December
{in EUR "000) 2017

Carrying amount* .. oA 838 030

Level 3 revaluation gain recognised due to change in accounting policy to revaluation -

model s 664 223

Carrying amount and fair value o 2 502 253
* The Group changed the accounting policy with respect to the measurement of property plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2017 on a prospective basis. Therefore, the carrying value of the property plant and
equipment was not measured at fair value as at 31 December 2016.

Had the group not applied the fair value modet the cost and the accumulated depreciation of the property plant
and equipment would have been as below:

(io EUR '000) ‘ i 31 December 2017

Cost Lo _2 081 92¢

Accumulated depreciation ¥ X (243 894)

Net carrying value 1 838 030
48
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

7.2 Revaluation of property plant and equipment

Fair value of the property plant and equipment was determined using income approach, i.e. the discounted cash
flows technique was applied. As at the dates of revaluation on 31 December 2017, the properties’ fair values are
based on valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer. A total net gain from the revaluation of the
land building and plant & machinery of EUR 534 698 thousand in 2017 was recognised in OCJ (EUR 518 516
thousand for the group and EUR 16 182 thousand for NCI), including EUR 728 723 thousand gain on revaluation
and EUR 194 025 thousand net deferred tax impact. The total net loss amounting EUR 64 500 thousand was
recognised through the income statement {refer to Note 24}.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Description of valuation techniques used to determine the fair values of property, plant and equipment and key inputs to those the refated fair values are sensitive are set
out in the table below:

All assets have been evaluated on the basis that the business is closed but immediately available to open its door for business.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 8: Operating leases — Group as Lessor

During 2017, the Group sold the following beneficial ownership of investment properties:

- Fleet Street Investments Ill Limited ; beneficial ownership of an investment property located at
Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street, London EC4 and 131, 132, 134 to 139 {inclusive} and 141 Fleet
Street and Daniel House, 140 Fleet Street, London EC4.

- Helens RE |, Helens RE 11, Helens RE (li and Helens RE IV; beneficial owners of the four supermarket deals
in Greece.

- Constellation OWS Properties Inc. ; beneficial owner of an investment property located One Wall Street,
New York, United States of America.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group does not own any investment property.

Future minimum rentals receivable/payable under the operating lease(s) are as follows:

(in EUR 'C00) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Within 1 year
After 1 year, but no more than 5 years

More than 5 years
Total lease at end of year 4 ) - 229120

Note 9: Investment properties

As described in Note 8, the Group sold the beneficial ownership of investment properties during the year and
does not own any investment progerty as at 31 December 2017.

The movements for the year are as follows:

{in EUR "000} ‘ 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

At 01 January S 11284360 - X
Forex exchange loss : ) :
Disposal of subsidiaries

126 989

Capital expenditure

Fair value loss recognized during the year

At 31 December TR 1 128 436

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties consisted of 6 properties in UK, USA and Europe.
The Group determines that the investment properties consist of following sub classes of assets based on the
nature, characteristic and risk of each property:

s office

* retail/mixed use

Description of location, type and size of the investment properties:
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Companies Location

Fleet. Streetlnvestments ', . Flest Street, :L‘ oid o, UK"'

-Limited - RN ;
.He_lgn_s.RE.t.' B ' ._'Ahmos, Attnca, Greece o
HelensREf; ; " TonibaziStreet, Thessaloniki, Greece-

HelensREIF

: :"Muriicipa,l'it"”

g ‘messalomk
: 'Constellatlon OWS Propemes,
'-|‘nc--..'.::.14

Helens. R&IV- e Greece

Wai! Street one,

' i;lfrgenenas Streét, Attica; Greece .. .
Pavlos. Melas, BRI

New:Ygrk,;US’.P;* :A,:_,,:»"Miii‘éd‘iuSe-‘i :

. Type T iSize
. Offlce property ' ”';.'34 423 sqm‘
o Retait . . :148565qm
. Retail: cammercxal;‘ Y -19,81"1;‘sqm;
. :Retaitcommercial: * - 8,728 sqm..
" Retailcommercial,” -~ 26,603 sqm

«

As at 31 December 2016, the net fair value of the properties is based on valuations performed by JLL, an
accredited independent Real Estate Appraisers who are specialistin valuing these types of investment properties.
Avaluation model is in accordance with the recommendation of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors {RICS).
The valuation models in accordance with those recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committee have been applied and are consistent with the principles in IFRS 13.

As set out in Note 3, in arriving at the estimates of the market value, the valuers have not only relied on historical
transactional comparable but also used their market knowledge and professional judgment to arrive at such

values.

As at 31 December 2017, no valuation of property was performed as the Group sold its investment properties.

The following table shows an analysis of incomes and expenses from investment property.

For the year ended For the year ended
{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Rental income derived from investment properties 24 788’ o

Reversal on bad debt atlowance on investment properties

Direct operating expenses (including repair and °
maintenance) generating rental income

Profit arising from investment properties carried at fair : .

value
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017

Reconciliation of fair value

Office properties Retail/mixed use

(in EUR '000) properties
At 01 January 2016 L 4200’83‘;:‘ E 705906 ‘

Foreign exchange (losses)/gain

Capital expenditures

Revaluation gain recognized in profit or Joss
At 31 December 2016

Foreign exchange losses

Capital expenditures

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

Total

~1'126.989-

SN
L 108927
S 1398
T 14,
L - (108343) ;

. 82305°

. (11067399)

The disposal of subsidiaries is composed of the London investment property for a total amount of EUR 306 754
thousand, the Greek investment property for EUR 64 800 thousand and the American investment property for

EUR 734 845 thousand as follows:

Retail/mixed use

(in EUR'000) Office properties aroperties
the London investment property ) {.3065734).5‘@ B G

the Greek investment properties
the American investment property

Total disposal of subsidiaries -

53

164800y -
Weasy; ;|
T (B0675A) ;i T (199°6aS)

Total

i (308:754)
. (eamon)

(134:345)..

v (1106399)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 Decernber 2017

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to reach the fair value of the investment properties:

PR——— ey ehniquels) o o o e L ot
Flgét Streetinvestments

; # 67:09 (fof Peterborough
< Court)
anjét House)
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Using the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumption regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s fife including an exit or terminal value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a market derived discount rate is applied to
establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

Significant increase {decreases} in estimated rental value would result in a significant higher (lower) fair value of
the property.

Generally, a change in assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar
change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate {(and exit yield).

Fair value hierarchy
Refer to note 20.8 for the analysis of the fair values Investment properties recognised in the statement of

financial position by level of the fair values measurement hierarchy.

Note 10: Investment in associates and joint ventures

The movements for the year are as follows:

Copley Plaza Sole Property Kopaszi Gat
Member LLC Market Kft Kft

TOTAL

{in EUR '000)

At 01 January 2016

Balance at acquisition date

Total comprehensive income for the
year (continuing operation)

At 31 December 2016

Balance at acquisition date

Total comprehensive income for the
year {continuing operation)

Disposal of subsidiary

At 31 December 2017

The joint venture requires the parent’s consent to distribute its profits. The parent does not foresee giving such
consent at the reporting date.

The joint venture has no contingent liabilities and no capital commitments as at 31 December 2017.

The Group has made the following acquisitions during the year 2017:

e e L pargs o Asurel
 Copley:Plaza. Sole:Member LLC. ~ -~ ST 14422017 8%
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017

Through its subsidiary Constellation US Hotels Holding S.A., the Group has acquired a 51% interest in Copley Plaza
Sole Member LLC, which owns the Fairmont Copley Plaza Hotel located in Boston, Massachusetts, USA. The
Group jointly control this entity and has been accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements.

The foliowing table illustrates the summarised financial information of this entity, and the income statement
impact of the two entities disposed during the year:

{in EUR '000)

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Group's carrying amount of the
investment

Revenue

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Fair value of investment property
fFinance {costs)/income

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year {continuing
operations) '

Total comprehensive income for the : ©

year {continuing operation)
Group's share of profit for the year

Copley Plaza Sole Property Kopaszi Gat

Member LLC Market Kft Kft TOTAL
w8260 0 0 - - 79260,
s -1 S SR 7 173
L (99.089)

The Group made the following acquisitions during the year 2016:

Coimpany 1, -
Property Market:
Kopaszi Gat Kit

o Type L AdquisitionDate . % acquired: |
U Retail Lo U0 19/04f2016 - 40%
ooRetail el 19/08/2016. 0 40%

As the two companies were acquired during 2016, they are proportionally consolidated following the equity
accounted method, and therefore there is no business combination as at 31 December 2016.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Through its subsidiary Consteliation Hungary S.A., the Group acquired a 40% interest in Property Market Kft. And
Kopaszi Gat Kft., which are involved in mixed used real estate business in Hungary. The Group’s interest in those
two entities were accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The following
table illustrates the summarised financial information as at 31 December 2016 of those twao entities:

in EUR 000 i

o L e o
Current assets 59 ‘5724 . 5.783.
Non-current assets 4 - 75542 L 77836
Currentliabilities T (4418) (6541)
Non-current liabilities (52 357) :357).
Equity . 24591

Group's carrying amount of the investment

Revenue T .'14"'1 2543
Cost of sales F U 2994)
Administrative expenses T (408)

Fair value of investment property 295:
finance (costs)/income

Profit before tax

fncome tax expense

Profit for the year {continuing operations)

Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing
operation)

Group's share of profit for the year

The Group sold these t\;vo entities during 2017.

Note 11: Other non-current financial assets

11.1.  Held to maturity investments

During the year 2015, CHH Finance S.A., a subsidiary of the Company, invested in bonds issued by a French Group
named LOV Group for a consideration of EUR 270 707 thousand with a maturity date in 2022, The investment
consists in four different bonds, namely: ) '

* 66 837 Senior Tranche A Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 66 837 thousand;

* 24 863 Senior Tranche B Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 24 863 thousand;

e 90 231 Mezzanine Notes FINANCIERE LOV for a total amount of EUR 90 231 thousand (reimbursed in
2016);

e 88776 Mezzanine Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 88 776 thousand.

As of 31 December 2017, an amortization of the Senior Tranche A Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION amounting to
EUR 4 300 thousand {2016: EUR 4 100 thousand) and an amortization of the Senior Tranche B Notes LOV HOTEL
COLLECTION amounting to EUR 712 thousand (2016: EUR 712 thousand) were received, thus leaving a net
amount of the complete investment of EUR 168 602 thousand (EUR 173 614 thousand in 2016).
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An impairment test was performed on these bonds and it was concluded that impairment does not exist. Indeed,
as disclosed in note 29 of these consolidated financial statements, the bonds have been early and fully repaid as
of the 11 April 2018. The amount fully repaid amounts to EUR 174 756 thousand {principal & accrued interest).
Based on the repayment it has been concluded that the investment is fully recoverable and that no signs of
impairment have been identified.

As the bonds have been repaid subsequent to 31 December 2017 for the amount of EUR 174 756 thousand,
therefore, the fair value of the bonds amounts to EUR 174 756 thousand (EUR 207 972 thousand in 2016).

11.2.  Loans and receivables

(in EUR'000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Loan notes!? 197:865: . 225121-
Loan to pacific Aviation Limited - - 1873
Smallwell Properties Limited S eI 6058
Ostan dubh Linn Teoranta Limited e T . 6008

Loan to Patrick Mc Kitlent¥
Loan £o AAC Copley Partners LLC!

s

000-

CACIB Equity Cure account! - 76100

Other SR T 3040
Total Loans and receivables .. 276539 - . 285752
{in EUR'000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Bonds loan 168602 L 173614
Total financial assets held to maturity : 16602 L e 173614
"Other non-current financial assets U aasaaytic oo 459.366:

M patrick Mc Killen is the former shareholder of Coroin Ltd. Following the acquisition of Séléné Sarl in 2015, the
Group has acquired also the loans bearing interests of 3% to the Irish companies for an amount of EUR 13 950
thousand and Patrick Mc Killen for an amount of EUR 37 656 thousand. During the period 2017, Patrick Mc Killen
took over the loans to the lrish companies increasing the Group receivable from Patrick Mc Killen to EUR 51 545
thousand as at 31 December 2017. The Maturity date is as of 2021. No amount has been received in 2017.

12} The loan notes for an amount of EUR 197 865 thousand {USD 237 300 thousand) are receivable from [HG with
an expected repayment when IHG divest and with a variable interest rate of 1.83%.

) The amount of EUR 6 000 thousand was related to a secured deposit account at an European bank in Société
des Hotels Intercontinental France S.A.S..

“) AAC Copley Partners LLC is the joint member of the joint venture Copley Plaza Sole Member LLC,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 12: Trade and other receivables
The trade and other receivables can be detailed as follows:

31 December 31 December

{in EUR '000) 2017 2016

Trade receivables S ..28367 . - - 53398
Impairment of trade and other receivables AR 7>1 ISR ¢ (X 1
Total trade and other receivables {net) RERTI 1 - - - SUDS 2.1

Past-dues for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 can be detailed as follow:

Neither past

due nor
Total impaired <30dd* 30-60 dd*  61-90dd*  91-120dd* > 120 dd*
EUR 00O EUR 00O EUR GO0 EUR 000 EUR 000
At31Dec.2016 |~ - 42597, . 14958 s 76070108 e 668
At31Dec.2017 .. 27795 . 15010, 2920, i 359 :

*dd: due day
Variation of the impairment on trade receivables:

Individually Collectively
impaired impaired

{in EUR '000)

At 01 January 2016
Charge far the year
Utilized

Unused amounts reversed
At 31 December 2016

Charge for the year -4
Utilized PSS -
Unused amounts reversed 1L (10.052)
Disposal of subsidiaries S " -(303)
Exchange difference Lt e

At 31 December 2017

- 572

From April 2015, the single tenant, of the four Carrefour hypermarkets owned by Helens RE | Commercial
Investments, Helens RE Il Commercial Investments, Helens RE it Commercial Investments, and Helens RE IV
Commercial Investments (four undertakings of Helens RE S.A., a subsidiary of the Company), Marinapoulos S.A.,
started experiencing financial difficulties and did not pay the contractual rent and an impairment amounting EUR
10 052 thousand was recorded as this situation was deemed by the Directors of the Company to potentially have
an impact on the recoverability of outstanding rent hence a provision for doubtful was made as of 31 December
2015. in 2016, no reversal of the pravision for doubtful debts was made the group is still uncertain over the final
outcome of the restructuring agreement - Transfer of business (refer Note 8).
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In 2016, the Group entered into new lease agreement with a new customer Sklaventis S.A and also has entered
into agreement to repay the outstanding rent of Marinopoulos S.A. (refer Note 8). The group has collected first
reimbursement in February 2017 in accordance with the agreement.

In 2017, the tenant of the four Greek investment properties paid the rents on time. Thus, the impairment
accumulated on trade receivables on regards of the four Carrefour hypermarkets amounting to EUR 10052
thousand have been reversed during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of impairment on trade receivables amounts to EUR 572 thousand and is
related to several insignificant bad debtors in Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. and CU.GL.MI Spa.

Note 13: Other current assets

The other assets are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

{in EUR '000)

Receivable from Hyatt International {guarantee margin) !
Shareholders receivable #

Ultimate shareholders advance

VAT and other tax ¥

Interest on bonds (refer to Note 11)

Receivable from other related parties ¥

L " 19990

Prepayments (hotel business) ¥
Prepayments (investment property)!”
Other®

Total trade and other receivable

M The Group has received a guarantee from Hyatt related to the hatel in France for a total of 7 years in order to
guarantee the percentage of occupation. Subject to the provisions set up in the Portfolio Guarantee Agreement
dated 31 January 2013 between the Group and Hyatt International (Europe, Africa, Middie East) LLC, an
indemnity related to the fourth quarter of the financial year 2016 is due to the Group. The current position
amounts to EUR 18 418 thousand (2016: EUR 19 990 thousand), which has been paid subsequent to year end (11
January 2018). .

@ As of 31 December 2017, the Shareholders advance includes the amount of EUR 942 070 thousand
corresponding to USD 1 129 824 thousand. This amount represents the claim which Regis Investment S.A. held
against Prime Capital S.A. for the sale of all the shares, capital contributions and advances Regis Investment S.A.
held in Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A.. As per the Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017, its
underlying Amendment Agreement dated 18 November 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31
December 2017, Regis Investment S.A. assigned this claim to the Group as part of payment of the consideration
far the investments which Regis Investment S.A. acquired from the Group during 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

13 The advances to Ultimate shareholders {(hereinafter ‘UBOs') represents an amount paid to them in prior years.
According to the assignment agreement entered by the Group on 2 May 2016, the outstanding liability to Séléné
S.ar.l, an affiliated subsidiary comgany of Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. amounts as of 31 December
2017 to EUR 91,670 thousand (2016: EUR 247 612 thousand). The UBO has an outstanding liability of EUR 89 837
thousand as of 31 December 2017 payable to Séléné S.ar.l. and it was agreed that UBO will pay all its autstanding
balance to the Group and the Group will pay the equivalent amount to the Séiéné S.ar.l. During the year, the
Group has received an amount of EUR 150 209 thousand (2016: EUR 46 845 thousand) from the UBOs and has
paid the equivalent amount to Séléné S.ar.l..

1 As at 31 December 2017, VAT and other tax is composed of tax receivables in France.

) As at 31 December 2017, receivable from other related parties represents an amount paid to the UBO of the
previous shareholder Régis Investment Ltd in prior years. According to the assignment agreement entered by the
Group on 2 May 2016, the UBO of Régis Investment Ltd has an outstanding liability of EUR 83 837 thousand as
of 31 December 2017 payable to Séléné S.ar.i., an affiliated subsidiary company of Constellation Hotels Holding
Ltd S.C.A,, and it was agreed that UBO will pay all its outstanding balance to the Group and the Group will pay
the equivalent amount to the Séléné S.ar.l..

) As at 31 December 2017, prepayments (hote! business) is mainly composed of the prepayments by the
American hotels for an amount EUR 3 551 thousand, by the London hotels for an amount of EUR 2 270 thousand
and by the French hatels for an amount of EUR 1 524 thousand.

?n 2017, the Group sold the all investment properties and does not own any investment property, therefore
no prepayments {(investment property} is identified as at 31 December 2017.

@1 0ther is mainly composed of the prepayment related to the renovation work of the 3 hotels in portfolio of
Constellation France S.A.S. in France for an amount of EUR 12 744 thousand {2016: EUR 25 272 thousand).

Note 14: Cash and cash equivalents

{in EUR *000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Cash at banks and on hand e .: 77645 s

Restricted cash

Total cash and cash equivaients

The restricted cash is located in USA for a total amount of USD 12 784 thousand in 2017 {Constellation Barclay
US, LLC) and USD 10 100 thousand in 2016 (Constellation Barclay US, LLC and Constellation OWS Corporation
Inc.). The remaining amount is located in different European subsidiaries. This cash has been restricted for
insurance and taxes reserves.
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Note 15: Issued capital and reserves

15.1.  Issued share capital

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Issued shares of EUR 100 each . 1660310'shares ;.. .. 1660310 shares .
fssued capital - (in EUR '000) ST 1660031 oL T T 1661038

On 26 March 2012 (incorporation date) the Company issued capital for an amount of EUR 31 thousand
repfesented by 310 shares with a par value of EUR 100 each. The initial share capital was fully subscribed and
paid in. On 21 December 2012, the Company increased its share capital by an amount of EUR 400 000 thousand
by issuing 4 000 thousand new shares with a par value of EUR 100 each, having the same rights and privileges as
the existing shares. All these new shares have been subscribed and fully paid up.

On 31 December 2013, the Company decreased its share capital by an amount of EUR 234 000 thousand by
cancelling 2 340 thousand shares and reimbursed an amount of £UR 234 000 thousand to the shareholders. Also
at the date the Company was transformed from a Société Anonyme to a Société en Commandite par Actions with
two classes of ordinary shares {A and 8). The rights attached to the classes of shares are similar.

On 31 December 2013, the authorized and issued share capital amounts to EUR 166 031 thousand represented
by 830 154 Ordinary A shares, 830 154 Ordinary B shares and 2 unlimited shares with a nominal value of EUR
100 each. The unlimited shares are held by the General Partner of the Company. The number of authorised and
issued shares moved from 4 031 000 shares as at 31 December 2012 to 1 660 310 shares as at 31 December 2013
as described above.,

During the year 2017 and 2016, no changes incurred in respect to the Company’s share Capital.
15.2,  Capital contribution without issue of shares

During the year 2017, the shareholders of the Company decided to make several capital contributions without
issuing shares in order to finance the different projects of the Company {EUR 125 408 thousand). Further, they
decided as well to transfer and to reimburse several capital contributions as part of the restructuring
(EUR 387 422 thousand). As of 31 December 2017, the capital contributions amount to EUR 1 135 191 thousand
(2016: 1 397 205 thousand).

During the year 2016, the capital contributions made by the shareholders amounted to EUR 114 million.
15.3. Legalreserve

The Company is required to allocate a minimum of 5% of its annual net income to a legal reserve, until this
reserve equals 10% of the subscribed share capital. This reserve for an amount EUR 676 thousand may not be
distributed. Due 1o the fact that the Company made a loss in 2016 no further aliocation has been done.

15.4.  Other reserves

The other reserves of the group are composed of:
¢ Reserves for employee benefit plans
¢ Hedge accounting reserve
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
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Note 16: interest-bearing loans and borrowings

16.1.  Summary of interest-bearing loans and borrowings

{in EUR '000)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - non current
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Accrued interests capitalised on the loan

Total non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings

interest-bearing loans and borrowings — current
Current accounts with REGIS INVESTMENT S.A.
Current portion of PRIME CAPITALS.A, loans
Current accounts with PRIME CAPITAL S.A./Y
Accrued interests on banks loans

Ultimate shareholders

Current portion of bank loan

Bank overdraft

Total of current barrowings

Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings

31 Dec. 2017

..21205.:4'70‘-- '
U612

L 2702407

iU The current accounts with the shareholder PRIME CAPITAL S.A. as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

(in EUR '000)

Current. accounts

Take-over of current accounts with REGIS INVESTMENT S.A.
Rem aining amount of the sale consideration price
Repayment to previous Ultimate shareholder

Total current accounts with' PRIME CAPITAL S.A.
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16.2.  Shareholders and third parties loans

Nominal Accryed

value in interests as

original at 31 Dec.
curr, 2017

(in EUR '600) interest rate Maturity Curr, 31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016

Shareholders and third parties loans
RegisInvestmentS.A, - . *UU31/33/2023 . -EWR. - 11rodo . - .. - 128500
Prime CapitalSA. . L oRlstaoponss eURCCmareo0 . sTesr iaeson

: 23/07/2023° ‘GBP' . .64220: . e 54907
| %.23/07/2023° GBP <. 64220
% . 01/05/2018. GBP" 1" 4

¥ 7-‘1'04%"-:.?'7\;:1'5g'm:.
. 19.00%: margii
- ,;9-:00%.-4:ma_rgin.i : )

L 75° G- idfgir
[ 2i75%:-

3: 00%

marg|n~' :

: ,’iOO% margm:» <3
margm o

1 T04%- margin:: . 26/02;
7 9.00%: margin- 2

- ‘7;00% ‘ margm

rime ":'8 00%: margm,f.f 14/12/2022
thtercontinental, T
Hotels Corporate .- "+

141534 1412690 1538 066

Less current portion
Prime-Capital Sid. - 5, .10
Prime Capital S.A, ;-

©7i39 0 OYf05(2018 GBP- 139106, - hiLA3RTSON -
3% 01/05/2018" | GBP L. 139006 . ey U(ABTS0E L -

- {265 500} -
Total shareholders and third parties loans —~ Non current 141534 1147 130 1538 066

«2.5% + variable based on the performance of the Company
** Upon agreement between Intercontinental Hotels Corporation and Constellation Hotels Holding S.C.A.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

16.2.1. Non-current portion of sharsholders and third parties loans

On 20 March 2017 an additional drawdown of EUR 15 000 thousand has been done by Prime Capital S.A. to its
Income Sharing Loan maturing at 31 December 2023, leaving the loan as of 31 December 2017 at an amount of
EUR 139 500 thousand (2016: EUR 124 500 thousand).

As per Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017,
Prime Capital S.A. has acquired all the long term loans from Regis Investment S.A. except for the one maturing
‘at 26 February 2024, which has been transferred together with the ane maturing at the same date and provided
by Prime Capital S.A. to SwanIsland S.A..

16.2.2. Current portion of shareholders and third parties foans - current

As per Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017,
Prime Capital S.A. has acquired all the short term payables from Regis investment S.A,, except the one for
financing Constellation Hungary S.A., which has been transferred together with the one provided by Prime
Capital S.A. for financing Constetlation Hungary S.A. to Swan Island S.A..
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16.3. Bankloans

Nominal Accrued
(in EUR . value in interests as
000) Interest rate Maturity Curr, original at 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016
curr. 2017
Bank Ioans

floatlng rate of GBP tIBOR:+ -
cle S margm._f.‘

EURlBOV IMwinargin - 05/07/2028 ~ EUR-© '350 ooo._'
. EURIBOR: M-+ iargin |  31/03/2019. EUR.": 65:000;
" EURIBOR - marglh? 31j03/2088° “Uso- | _' o
:27/05/2022-_- ¢ EUR .14
o2 e -
.30/09/2019f__’ CEURT

Loan 1* C

Loan13 2
ot

. . te N “.". .2\39.:2.47 st .‘.'.'Z s
488 1081551 2610237

Less current portlon

' Afloatm_'_ notaonal swap s .
g2

LSSy (162
{770) (23 271) (621 240)
Total bank loans — Non current 4078 1058 280 1988997

TOTAL interest-bearing loans and borrowings — non current '-A,fj.‘45'§12. '_ge'ZjQS'470 ©.." 3527063

* Disposal of subsidiaries

Bank loan 1, contracted by Fleet Street Investments il Ltd, had maturity date of 05/07/2017 and accordingly
classified as current in 2016 period. During 2017, Fleet Street Investments Il Ltd was disposed and the Group has
transferred the bank loans contracted by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December
2017.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Bank loan 7, with a maturity date of 30/09/2019, is contracted by Constellation Hotels Italy Srl. During 2017,
Constellation Hotels Italy Srl. was disposed and the Group has transferred the bank loans contracted by the
subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017.

Bank loan 9, contracted by Constellation OWS Properties, Inc. had a maturity date of 27/04/2017 and was
therefore classified in current. During 2017, Constellation OWS Properties, Inc. was disposed and the Group has
transferred the bank loans contracted by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December
2017.

8ank loan 10, with a maturity date of 01/05/2018, is contracted by Constellation Hotel (Opco) UK S.A.. During
2017, Constellation Hatel (Opco) UK S.A. was disposed and the Group has transferred the bank loans contracted
by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017.

Bank loan 11, with a maturity date of 20/05/2020, is contracted by Société des Hotels Intercontinental France
S.A.S.. During 2017, Saci¢té des Hotels Intercontinental France S.A.S. was disposed and the Group has transferred
the bank loans contracted by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017.

16.3.1. Current portion of bank loans
The fair vatues of the borrowings are approximate equal to their carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no bank overdraft,

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank overdraft ciassified in short-term loan for an amount of EUR 198
thousand at a commercial bank in Europe and is repayable on demand

16.3.2. Non-current portion of bank foans

**In 2017, Constellation Barclay US, LLC refinanced the three loans contracted (refer to loans 4, 8 and 12) and
entered into a new Bank Mortgage with a commercial bank in Europe for an amount of USD 290 000 thousand
with a maturity date as of 30/03/2018 (refer to loan 14}.

In 2017, the loan initially contracted by Coroin Ltd amouting to GBP 788 560 thousand was renegotiated with the
bank as Coroin Ltd was disposed during the year. Séléné Holding Ltd took over a part of the initial loan for an
amount of GBP 386 410 thousand, keeping the characteristic of the initial loan: a maturity date as of 27/10/2022
and an interest rate of 3.50%. (refer to loan 6}

Bank loan pledges

The Company and its subsidiary, CHH Finance S.A., respectively pledged the former’s subscribed shares of the
latter amounting to EUR 31 000 and the latter’s bank account as well as “fiducie-sireté” over its subscribed Notes
{refer to Note 11), in favour of Bank in its capacity as lender {refer to loan 5). During the year the Group repaid
total amount of EUR 12 346 thousand. The Group used the proceeds of the interest payment of all the LHC Notes
for an amount of EUR 7 334 thousand to reimburse the existing bank facility and an annual amortization of EUR
S 012 thousand.

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement all the shares issued by Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. are pledged in
favour of the banks (refer to toan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a conventional mortgage for an amount of EUR 275 000 thousand
in favour of bank and for an amount of EUR 110 000 thousand in favour of another bank in their capacity as
lenders. Extreme effective date is 31 January 2021 {refer to loan 2).
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Constetllation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a conventional mortgage for an amount of EUR 27 500 thousand
in favour of bank and for an amount of EUR 11 000 thousand in favour of another bank in their capacity as
hedging bank. Extreme effective date is 31 January 2021 (refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a conventional martgage (as security) for an amount of EUR 14
850 thousand in favour of bank and for an amount of EUR 5 940 thousand in favour of another bank. Extreme
effective date is 31 January 2021 (refer to loan 2)

Further, Constellation Hotels France S$.A.S. entered into a complementary mortgage as security for the payment
of the interest due under the Facility {refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered as well into a first ranking pledge of the business in favour of bank in
its capacity as lender, as agent and as hedging bank and in favour of another bank in its capacity as lender and
as hedging bank (refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. pledged all its bank accounts and receivables and assigned the professional
receivables as a security (refer to foan 2).

CU.GI.MI. SpA renegotiated its Facility with several banks for a total amount of EUR 65 000 thousand in 2016.
This loan is secured by means of a mortgage on the owned property and by pledging 100% of the shares in favour
of the Lenders (refer to loan 3).

Société des Hatels InterContinental France {SHIF) S.A.S. had pledged all of its issued shares in favour of bank in
its capacity as lender. The pledged issued share capital of SHIF amounted to EUR 115 112 (refer to loan 11).
During 2017, Société des Hotels Intercontinental France S.A.S. was disposed, consequently, the Group has been
released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017. ’

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotels Holding pledged in favour of a
bank, al!l the present and future rights, titles, interests and benefits in to and under the Shares and Distributions
{i.e. all rights, titles, interests and benefits of Constellation Hotels Holding in respect of any dividend, bonus
shares or any type of distribution, return or right in respect of any of the shares of Constellation Hotel UK S.A.
{whether by way of bonus, conversion, disposition, exchange, option, preference, redemption, sale substitution
or otherwise) (refer to{oan 10). During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. was disposed, consequently, the Group
has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotels Holding and Constellation Hote!
UK S.A. pledged in favour of a bank, ali the present and future rights, titles, interests and benefits in to.and under
the Shares and Distributions (i.e. all rights, titles, interests and benefits of Constellation Hotels Holding in respect
of any dividend, bonus shares or any type of distribution, return or right in respect of any of the shares of
Constellation Hotel {OpCo) UK S.A. {whether by way of bonus, conversion, disposition, exchange, option,
preference, redemption, sale substitution or otherwise) {refer to loan 10}. During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK
S.A. was disposed, consequently, the Group has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Pursuant to a receivables pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. pledged in favour of
a bank, all the present and future claims it has or will have against Constellation Hotel (OpCo) UK S.A. under the
Intercompany Loan Agreements, including, for the avoidance of doubt, all income deriving there from, payments
made or to be made in respect thereof, interest thereon, proceeds thereof and rights, title and benefits in
relation thereto (refer to loan 10).Pursuant to a receivables pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation
Hotel (OpCo) UK S.A. pledged in favour of a bank, all the present and future claims it has or will have against
Constellation Hotel UKS.A. under the Intercompany Loan Agreements, including, for the avoidance of doubt, ali
income deriving there from, payments made or to be made in respect thereof, interest thereon, proceeds thereof
and rights, title and benefits in relation thereto (refer to loan 10). During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. was
disposed, consequently, the Group has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to a receivables pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotels Holding pledged in favour
of a bank, all the present and future claims it has or will have against Constellation Hotel UK S.A. and Constellation
Hotel {OpCo) UK 5.A. under the Intercompany Loan Agreements, including, for the avoidance of doubt, all income
deriving there from, payments made or to be made in respect thereof, interest thereon, proceeds thereof and
rights, title and benefits in relation thereto (refer to ldan 10}. During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. was
disposed, consequently, the Group has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to the Term Loan and Security Agreement dated 31 March 2014, the indirect undertaking of
Constelfation Barclay UK Limited i.e. 111 £ast 48th Street Holdings, LLC (Delaware, USA) pledged in favour of a
bank, as collateral, all right, title, and interest of pledger in and to the followings: (i} Interest Rate Cap Agreement,
(i1} all payments, distributions, disbursements due to be delivered to pledger in relation to interest Rate Cap
Agreement, (iii} all pledgers’ claims, rights, powers, privileges, authority, options, security interests, liens and
remedies, if any, under interest Rate Cap Agreement, including all accessions and addition to, replacements,
products and proceeds of any of the foregaing (refer to loan 8).

in reference to the loan 14, the Term Loan and Security Agreement are still the same as before refinancing.
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As at 31 December 2017 )

Note 17: Derivative financial instruments

The derivatives financial instrument can be described as follows:

(in EUR “000) Fair value at tmpact on 31/12/2017 impact on 31/12/2016
. Yotal
9 inal i . Equi Profi i fi
% 'c‘:';;’:;”e Currency __Naminal in Startdate  Enddate  Swap 31/12/2017 31/12/2016  changein quity rofit or Equity  Profit or

original currency

{oqy loss {ocy loss

. 100%, 30/09/2019 S ey T {4s)

1268

333
129

100%,
Liabilities
N/A-

/A
Assets

' L sarsm)
* Entities sold

" a9’

The derivative financial instruments assets are included in other non-current assets.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

17.1,  Gain and lass on derivatives

{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Fair value at the beginning of the year ST eazsy . 7 (251900
Fair value at the end of the year without taxes ) (17527) ‘ +(227125)-
Exchange difference S 19 T T (208).
Total gains on derivative financial instruments for the year Wl 4617 o e 2860

Total {losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments acquired " (1:278): '_ .. 206
- - :'A 1255 o .

Total gains on derivative financial instruments disposed

Total gains on derivative financial instruments _' ’ 3066

17.2,  Use of the derivatives

The Group uses an interest rate swap to manage its interest rate risk exposure. The Group’s principal objective
in holding or issuing derivatives is to manage interests rate risk related to its liabilities. The operations of the
Group are subject to the risk of interest rate risk fluctuations of the loan entered into with the Bank in 2017 and
the previous years.

17.3. Cash flow hedge

The fair value adjustment is net of tax in the OCl for an amount of EUR 2 041 thousand (2016: EUR 2467
thousand).

Fleet Street Investments Ltd I} has entered into a swap agreement with a commercial bank in Europe (the "Swap
Counterparty”) to effectively swap the variable rate on its bank loan for a fixed rate of 1.435% per annum on 21
May 2012. The Group receives interest from the Swap Counterparty at a variable rate of 3-month GBP Libor-cap.
The swap terminated on 5 July 2017 which matches the maturity of the bank loan the Group entered into with a
commercial bank in Euraope.

Ouring 2017, Fleet Street Investments 1l Ltd was disposed and the Group does not support bank loans and swap
instruments contracted by the subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2017, the swap rate agreement contracted by Société des Hotels Intercontinental France
S.A.S, with a maturity date of 20/05/2020, is not supported by the Group as Société des Hotels Intercontinental
France S.A.S. was disposed and the Group does not support bank loans and swap instruments contracted by the
subsidiary.

In 2017, Constellaticn Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a swap agreement with two commercial banks in Europe.
The swap terminates on S July 2024, which matches the maturity of the bank loans.

The variation of the fair value of the interest rate swap of EUR 4 598 thousand has been recognised in financial
cost and offset with a similar gain on the bank borrowings (2016: EUR 3 066 thousand).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Derivatives are measured at fair value level 2 fair value measurements {refer to note 20.8).

Note 18: Other current payables

The Other current payable breakdown is as follows:

(in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Accrued construction cost : S B ¢ % SV

Operating provision for hotel business
Accrued severance

Accrued salaries & wages

Taxes excluding income tax
Prepayments from tenants

Tenant payables and deposits

Other payables to third parties

Other accrued expenses

Total other current payables :.;;. 127300 T

As at 31 December 2017, the other payables to third parties are mainly composed of EUR 37 232 thousand (GBP
33 034 thousand) payable to Fleet Street investments Ltd ill and the consideration amounting to EUR 24 700
already received by the Group for the sale of the shares of the indirect subsidiary. In addition they include an
amount of EUR 12 660 thousand (USD 15 183 thousand) erroneously credited to the Group’s bank account; this
amount was transferred to the foreseen beneficiary in early 2018.

As at 31 December 2016, the other payables to third parties is mainly composed of the loan to Col investment
the former shareholder of Séléné S.ar.l, for an amount of EUR 5 460 thousand.

Note 19: Provisions

Non-current provisions as at 31 December 2017 refer to the retirement plan in France for an amount of EUR
6 882 thousand (2016: EUR 14 074 thousand) and the UK hotel business for an amount of EUR 2 851 thousand
{2016: EUR 6 635 thousand). Current provisions amounting to EUR 4 574 thousand as at 31 December 2017
mainly refer to the retirement plan in France (2016: EUR 4 908 thousand). ‘

Note 20: Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise ioans and borrowings, shareholders
loans, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include
loans and receivables, bonds, trade and other receivables, and cash at banks and short-term deposits that derive
directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarized below.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

20.1. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, depaosits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity anafyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2017 and 2016.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant and on the basis of the hedge instruments in place at 31 December 2017.

20.2, Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

To manage its interest rate risk, the Group enters into interest rates swaps, in which the Group agrees to
exchange, at specified intervals, the differences between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by
reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. These swaps are designed to hedge underlying debt
obligations. At 31 December 2017, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, 11.78% of the
Group’s borrowings are hedged (2016: 19.30%).

Since the floating rate interest are 23.54% hedged with floating to fixed interest rate swaps, there will be no
impact on profit or loss arising due to variability of interest income and expense (2016: 30.55%). However, a
change in interest rate will affect the fair value of the value of the swap and therefore will affect the profit or
loss and equity. Also, the impact of interest rate on cash deposits held by the Group is not expected to be material
on the profit or toss of the Group.

20.3.  Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the Group’s exposure to interest rates for interest bearing
assets and liabilities at the statement of financial position date and has been based on management’s assessment
of the possible changes in interest rates.

Had the interest rate been hiéher {fower} of 100 basis point, the net profit and net equity would have been lower
(higher) of EUR 22 731 thousand {2016: EUR 59 270 thousand}.

20.4.  Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Groug’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different
currency from the Group’s presentation currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group has an opportunistic appreach in relation with foreign currency exchanges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

20.5.  Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currencies exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives and embedded
derivatives. The impact on the Group's equity is due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges and net investment hedges. The Group's exposure to foreign currency changes
for all other currencies is not material.

(in EUR '000)

Percentage of change in rate Effect on GBP Effect on USD Effect on HUF

As at 31 December 2017 profit before tax profit before tax profit before tax
+20% N S@s073)y. . - {18y - (105550)
20% Sasers - asUe . 10850,

Percentage of change in rate
As at 31 December 2016

+20%
-20%

The movement in the before tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
not designated in a hedge relationship and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in GBP, where the
functional currency of the entity is a currency other than GBP. Although the derivatives have not been designated
in a hedge relationship, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions when they
occur,

The movement in equity arises from changes in GBP borrowings {net of cash and cash equivalents} in the hedge
of net investments in GBP operations and cash flow hedges. These movements will offset the translation of the
GBP operations’ net assets into EUR.

20.6.  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

20.6.1. Cash

Before placing cash with any bank, the Group has due consideration to both investment and credit risk. Although
most of its cash balances are held with only two European banks and an American bank, the concentration risks
are deemed insignificant given the good reputation of the two European banks.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

20.6.2. Receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each counterparty.
Given that the Group has advanced loans to its subsidiaries, the main counterparty risk lies in the inability of the
subsidiaries to pay the interest payments on a timely basis, which will be borne by the ultimate holding company.
However, as a means to mitigate this counterparty risk, the Group has arranged for the rental income earned by
the subsidiary to be deposited directly in the bank account of the Group. The interest on loans receivables are
offset against that amount first whilst the remaining amount sits as an amount payable in the accounts of the
Group.

20.6.3. Interest rate swap

Credit risk also arises on the interest rate swap agreement entered into with a European bank. Nevertheless, the
counterparty risk is controlled since the Group has chosen a bank with a good credit rating of A1, as issued by
Moody’s. In case of an unlikely default, the Company will he exposed to a flaating rate interest of GRP 11IROR nn
the bank loan taken from another European bank since the purpose of the derivate financial instrument was to
swap floating interest rate with a fixed interest rate.

20.7.  liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations arising from its financial
liabilities as they fall due.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The
Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access
to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing
lenders.

As the rental income is received on a quarterly basis and interest payment under bank loan agreement is made
on a quarterly basis as well, part of the liquidity risk is mitigated. Also, rental income is first restricted to the
payment of the bank foan interest and then the other expenses of the Group.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments,

31 December 2017
Less than 1 Betweenl Morethan5s

(in £UR '000) A .Total vear to 5 years years
Bank borrowings (refer Note 16) .- “108%.551" 23271 - 764180  294°100:
Interest on bank borrowings payable in the - 1.'24-5,,432 e : L 2.025
future L. e e e
Shareholder loans {refer Note 16) 71412690 7.0 1081453
Interest an shareholder loans payable in the N : '55:~724,_ A“7‘ 965
future R LI :
Other non-current liabilities SRR - S .
Trade payables L 061492% T BTA92 T T e L T
Other current payables (refer Note 18) ©-7113465: 113465 - - e T e
75

[



Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(in EUR '000) Total Less than 1 Betweenl Morethan5
year to S years years

Bank borrowings (refer Note 16) . 2610237 621240 1,031:860: - 957137

Interest on bank borrowings payable in the ' U TS A

future

Shareholder loans {refer Note 16) 1538065 AR 267526 1270539
interest on shareholder loans payable in the 416406 S8769. - 214102 x _-1213':‘53.5?:
future R B LT R
Other non-current liabilities BRI 7/ 7 2R P £ 7 S

Trade payables
Other current payables (refer Note 18)

10.8. Fair values

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is estimated using quoted market prices for similar instruments and
adjusted for differences between the gquated instrument and the instrument being valued. ln certain cases,
inciuding the loans advanced to borrowers, where there are no ready markets, various techniques have been
used to estimate the fair value of the instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Readers
of these financial statements are advised to use caution when using the data to evaluate the Groups financia!
position or to make comparisons with other companies.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments including cash, loans issued, short-term accounts
receivables and payables, short-term and long-term borrowings is spproximately equal.to their fair vaiue.

There have been no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels during 2017 and 2016.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The following table gives details of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments:

Carrying Fair Values Carrying Fair Values
(in EUR '000) Amount 2017 2017 Amount 2016 2016

Assets ... 565810 . 571964 . . 713247 . - “747.605
e, 44581 4512957 459366 - 493724
U 92874’ Org74’ v 21128847 211284
D275 277950 dasdY T azsy

Other non-current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Tl 449468 449493y

Liabilities T 2908816 »
R I 2610237 -

Borrowings

Debt towards shareholder

Derivatives

Trade and other payables i 188792 165857 o 165857

The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and fiabilities:

{in EUR '000) Quoted

TOTAL price:-s in
active

markets
31 December 2017 (tevel 1) (level 2) {level 3)

Assets Gl mBE T Tel 03134
451295
92874
e hL37798
s U St 60607

Significant Significant
observable  unaobservable
inputs inputs

Property, plant and equipment

Others non-current assets o ”~'4Si}'2»95; b
U oxema
7785
C 60607 T

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Assets held for sale

Liabilities 298328
Borrowings i 108639 _ S
Shareholder loans ,_Z_": :_"1‘:61"’6E0:9‘8", ST L
Derivatives 17527
Trade and other payables L 188792 A
Liabilities directly associated with the .-~ < I
assets held for sale

| Aadey I " adage
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

(in EUR ‘000) Quotefi Significant Significant
TOTAL p;i:g‘sl;n observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
31 December 2016 (level 1) {tevel 2) (level 3)
Assets . teatess’ .. . . 1841683
Investment properties 1 128436 o Sl 1128436
Others non-current assets - :=‘_ 459366 Do Tme .:';:_ 459366
Cash and cash equivalents . T84 ~ B Lo 211284,
Trade and other receivables L S 42597 - R S 42597
Liabilities L adgases . L 2213570 AR a3
Borrowings _-:.': ) - 2610237 i L 251'9?2:,37
Shareholder loans = )

1696349
Derivatives o 22 125"

Trade and other payables

Note 21: Disposal group held for sale

On S May 2017, the Group announced the decision of its Board of Managers to potentially sell Société Palais de
la Mediterannée, a wholly indirectly owned subsidiary. On 31 December 2017, the shareholders of the Company
approved the plan to sell. The sale of Société Palais de la Mediterannée expected to be completed within a year
from the reporting date. At 31 December 2017, Société Palais de la Mediterannée was classified as a disposal
group held for sale. Société Palais de la Mediterannée is active in the hotel business and is the beneficial owner
of the hotel Palais de la Mediternanée in France. ‘
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Société Palais de la Mediterannée classified as held for sale as at 31

December are, as follows:

31 December

(in EUR '000) 2017

Assets

Intangible assets 9050
Property, plant and equipment . "11‘4’;.7375' )

Other fixed assets : 4515
Deferred tax asset :.~ 13.4-.;
Debtors . :0(15'1,

Cash and short-term deposits R 4552
Assets held for sale - 60607
Liabilities

Creditors - 1153
Derviatives © 1948,
Deferred tax liability o f:";??()_;
Interest-bearing liabilities -t 35087
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale T 44468
Net assets directly associated with disposal group .. 161139

o0y

Immediately before the classification of Société Palais de la Mediterannée as held for sale, the recoverable
amount was estimated for certain items of property, plant and equipment and no impairment loss was identified.
Following the classification, no write-down was recognised on 5 May 2017 as the carrying amount of the disposal
group did not fall below its fair value fess costs to sell. Fair value measurement disclosures are provided in Note

N

PPN

sam; o

v

20.

As at 31 December 2017, there was no write-down as the carrying amount of the disposal group did not fall

below its fair value less costs to sell.
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Note 22: Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years end 31 December 2017 and 2016 are:

22.1.  Current income tax

(in EUR '000)

Income tax
Current income tax

Sub-total, current income tax

Deferred tox
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Sub-total, deferred tax

income tax expense credit reported in the statement of profit

or loss

For the yearended For the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

L, fe2swy (3735
L (asay: o Ue (8738)
< amaers T

L e

22.2.  Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Luxembourg domestic

tax rate for 2017 and 2016

(in EUR'000)

Accounting loss before income tax

At Luxembourg’s statutory income tax rate of 27.08% (2016:
29.22%)

Difference in tax rate*
Tax-exempt income

Effect of unrecognized losses carried forward

Permanent differences

Income tax expense credit reported In the statement of profit
or loss

Effective tax rate
(in EUR '000)

Income tax expense credit

Net loss

Group effective tax rate
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For the year ended For the year ended
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

* The change in tax rate is related to the decrease in the Luxembourgish tax from 29.22% to 27.08%, the US tax
rate from 46.06% to 33.75% and to disposal of certain subsidiaries located in different jurisdictions refer to Note
4).

22.3.  Detail of the deferred tax

Deferred taxes are related to the following:

Consolidated statement of Consolidated statement of
financial position profit or loss

For theyear For theyear
{(in EUR '000) 31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016 ended 31 ended 31
Dec. 2017 Dec. 2016

Timing differences for tax purposes

20 714)
| (5793

Revaluation of tangible assets

Revaluations of investment properties to fair value
Pension
Revaluation of financial instruments at fair value
Management contract

Assets held for sale

Other

Effect of tax rate difference

s
- @782,
S Boedy
. (5T 0a3)

Tax loss carried forward
Deferred tax income

Net deferred tax liabilities
Reputed as assets

Reputed as liabilities

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority.

Note 23: Revenue

The total revenue for the year is broken down as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

{in EUR ‘000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Rental income Gl 24788 . (v 130832
Income from hotel operations ) 545732 SRR 557779
Total revenue ' B 570520 L s 311
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During the year 2017, the Group activities were located in United Kingdom, United States of America, france,

Greece and italy as follows:

{in EUR '000)

United Kingdom

France

Italy

United States of America
Greece

Total revenue

Note 24: Operating expense

The operating expense for the year are detailed as follows:

(in EUR '000)

Purchase of goods and services
Distribution and marketing
Administration expenses
Operating leases

Bad debt allowances (refer to Note 12)
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of tangible assets
impairment of intangible assets
Write-off of tangible assets
Impairment of tangible assets
impairment of receivables
Insurance

Staff costs

Real estate taxes °

Utilities

Repairs & maintenance
Royatties

Other

Total operating expense
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 25: Financial income and expense

25.1.  Financial income

For the year ended For the year ended

{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Interest and similar income* o 16459 o , 25863
Net foreign exchange gain . fm‘;‘.,',.j “}'OZ{O_OA: T “:,,;;A:“:‘39’921-
Total financial income 118466 65784

*Interest and simitar income include the interest income on bonds (refer to Note 11} for an ambunt of EUR 9 256
thousand (2016: EUR 10 362 thousand)

25.2,  Financial expense

Forthe yearended For the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

""" S RSETR 5 T (597

{in EUR '000)

Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments

Interest on bank loan and similar expense

Interest on shareholders loans

Other financial charges
Total financial expense LR adoge) o (Tesigon)

Note 26: Other operating income

The other operating income is mainly composed of EUR 72 171 thousand related to the guaranty agreement
provided by Hyatt International to Constellation Hotel Holding Ltd S.a r.l. (2016: EUR 62 210 thousand).

Note 27: Off-Balance sheet commitments

Off-balance sheet commitments {not discounted) given at 31 December 2017 break down as follows:

{in EUR '000) ‘ ‘ 31 December 2017 31 D’eéember 2016
Guarantees LT 300000 L -30'600..
TOTAL S wh. 300000 - S el 30°000

A European bank issued upon the instruction of the Group a guarantee of EUR 30 million to the banks that
provided financing to the group companies (Société du Louvre-Lafayette S.A.S, Concorde Martinez S.A.S. and
Société du Palais de la Méditerranée S.A.5.).
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Note 28: Related party transactions

For the purpose of applying IAS 24, the Group has identified the following related parties:

e All fully consolidated companies and all associated companies accounted for using the equity
method (refer to Note 4);

¢ All members of the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors and the members of their
direct families;

e All companies in which a member of the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors holids
material voting rights;

o Companies that exercises significant influence over the Group (refer to Note 4);

¢  Fully consolidated companies by a company that exercise significant influence over the Group.

e No management remuneration was paid in 2017 and 2016. A consultancy fee of EUR 2 million has
been paid to Al Mirgab capital for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: EUR 2 million)

All loans received from shareholders in any year and all related interest are related party transactions. (refer to
note 16). '

Note 29: Subsequent events

According to the Master Transfer Agreement dated S May 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31
December 2017, the Group undertook to Regis Investment S.A. to take ali the necessary steps and actions in
order to complete the transfer of its indirect subsidiary Société du Palais de la Miéditerranée by end of June 2018.
The agreed transfer price, already received by the Group amounts to EUR 24 700 thousand.

Further, on 6 April 2018 the Group acquired from Cornerstone Commercial Properties Holdings S.A., a
Luxembourg public limited liability Group, 580 932 shares representing 100% of the Luxembourg public limited
liability Group Stellar Hotels S.A. for a total consideration of EUR 57 993 thousand. Stellar Hotels S.A. is operating
exclusively in hotel business. Further, at the same date the Group acquired also from Cornerstone Commercial
Properties Haldings S.A. all the related claims and liabilities regarding Stellar Hotels S.A,, leaving at the end a
receivable from Cornerstone Commercial Properties Holdings S.A. of GBP 1 222 thousand towards the Group.

On 11 April 2018, LOV Group proceeded to an early voluntary repayment of the ocutstanding Senior Tranche A
Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION, Senior Tranche 8 Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION and Mezzanine Notes LOV
HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 174 756 thousand {principal & accrued interest). Out of those
proceeds, CHH Finance S.A. reimbursed the entire bank facility for a total amount of EUR 29 575 thousand
(principal & accrued Interest). Consequently, as from that day on, CHH Finance S.A. has been released from al!
its commitments and contingencies towards the bank.

On April 11th, 2018, Constellation Surrey NY LLC, a direct subsidiary of Constellation Surrey Holding S.A., acquired
a loan a nominal value of USD 45 000 000, initially made by CIBC Inc. to 20 East 76th Street Co LLC, and is secured
by the real property known as the Surrey Hotel located in New York.
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